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1. The President’s Letter
This year, we continued with the Programme Review to take stock of where we stood with our
vision of providing every disadvantaged child in Singapore the opportunity to break away from
the poverty cycle, by the year 2025.

It became clear that we have implemented our programmes based on community needs and
with good intent, and that our work needs to take a long-term view of our young people
achieving economic and social stability. We hope that when these young people start families of
their own, they will be on a better footing than their care-givers when they first came to us. As
such, we will keep in touch with the young people, and measure their well-being in terms of
economic and social stability until they are 25 years old.

While we will track each cohort’s progress, we cannot fully attribute their success entirely to
our efforts. However, if we succeed in maintaining constant contact, it would be safe to say that
we would have reduced the possibility of these young people falling through the cracks.
Nonetheless, as we continue to learn from each cohort of service-users, our interventions and
programmes should become more relevant for their benefit. Going forward, seeking clarity and
understanding of the impact of our work will be an ongoing endeavour.

At this point, I would like to thank our friends who joined us in our Programme Review
exercise. Our Honorary Advisor, Dr S Vasoo,

Dr Tan Bee Wan, Ms Eliza Quek and

representatives from Ministry of Community Development Youth & Sports, the National
Council of Social Services, the MILK Fund, the Ang Mo Kio Family Service Centres and the
REACH Family Service Centre. These were Ms Marie Yeo, Ms Carol Pereira, Ms Peng Hai Ying,
Mr Vincent Ng and Mr Terence Yow respectively. It was encouraging and helpful to have
important stakeholders within the social service sector taking a keen interest in the
development of our work.

This year, under the purview of the Commissioner of Charities, our level of governance was
reviewed by a consultant appointed by the Ministry of Community Development Youth and
Sports. We achieved an overall score of 92% (Good) for our corporate governance.
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Keeping the work relevant and the organisation well run has only been possible because of the
dedication of those who support the vision and mission of guiding disadvantaged young
people away from the poverty cycle. It has been a privilege to serve alongside our volunteers
and staff who give much of themselves. I would also like to take this opportunity to thank our
Patrons Dr Sheryn Mah and Mrs Joy Balakrishnan, our Honorary Advisor Dr S Vasoo and my
fellow Board and Board Committee Members for their selfless service.

Sincerely,

Stanley Tan
President
Beyond Social Services
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2. Executive Director’s Summary
While taking stock of our vision that “by 2025, every child and youth in Singapore, despite a
disadvantaged background has the opportunity to refuse a lifestyle of delinquency and welfare
dependency”, we realised that despite serving 4420 young people and 3523 of their family
members, we were only reaching a very small percentage of what we estimate as the “universe”
of our target population.

We defined the “universe” by looking at statistics that informed us on 3 population segments:
a. The low-income families
b. The families described as “dysfunctional”
c. Young persons with delinquency-related behaviours.

As we glanced at the proportion of the “universe” we were reaching, we were humbled as the
figures showed that we were still far away from our vision.(Fig 1) We realised that by simply
providing services to the target population, we would be unable to extend our reach very much
further. The organisation was already operating 5 times its size since the vision was established
and it was obvious that being a service-provider would not be adequate. It was also obvious
that for such a vision to be realised, we need to be working in alignment with others in the
government, people sector and our community at large. Our vision must be one shared by
Singapore society.

Most importantly, families and communities have to believe that their young people are not
destined for a lifestyle of delinquency and welfare dependency. They are the natural
environment for the well-being and development of their children and our role is to provide the
support that preserves this. In short, we should be enabling families and communities to care
for their young.
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Figure 1
Target population

The Universe

Our reach

Low-income families

529,755 persons living in households with

1.56%

income <$1,000
‘Dysfunctional’ families

7500 as estimated by the Inter-Ministry

10.9%

Committee on Dysfunctional Families
Youths with delinquency-

4351 Juvenile Arrest Cases & Beyond

related behaviours

Parental Control

3.1%

We decided that we needed to take a pro-active approach to reach the children and youths
before they become embedded in social services. This required us to emphasize the community
development aspects of our work and these were the steps we took:

1. Reflecting on the practice of social work.
We concluded that the values of compassion, social justice and community must be inherent in
all social work endeavours.
2. Appreciating our Journey thus far
Expertise we acquired from managing delinquency among children from disadvantaged
backgrounds also proved helpful for those in schools and from the mainstream. Thus over the
past 5 years, we found ourselves in schools, institutions and the reformative centre. This breath
of experience has given us skills and perspectives that we need to keep as we take the work
forward so that our quality of work continues to improve
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Below is a diagram that puts the current changes in perspective. (Figure 2)

Beyond
Social
Services

2011 and forward
Emphasis on people,
locality, community
partnerships, information
(99 staff + volunteers serving
9000+ young people)
2006 to 2010
- Safekids
- KU Home
- Community Beyond
- Step Up / Enhanced Step Up
- Guidance Programme
- Restorative Care
- Tracking of partners
- Tracking of volunteers
(102 staff, serving 5000+ young people)

Guiding force
- Vision : By 2025….
- Strategic profile

2002 to 2005
Gradual growth of programmes
- Pilot HSP
- LIFE
- HSCDC was built
- Launch of Babes
- School based work (Campland)
(120 staff, serving 8000+ young people)
2001
Change of name to Beyond Social
Services
Strategic Review
Key programmes :
FSC, KU, YU, Level-Up, SWP
(20+ staff, serving 800 young people)

Experience /
Knowledge
Gained
- Continuum of
Services
- Child protection
system
- Youth offending
system
- Prison system
- Residential
framework
- Community
Development
knowledge
- Diploma curriculum
- Restorative social
work

3. Emphasis on People, Locality, Community Partnerships and Information
We re-organised ourselves and tweaked our programme designs based on the following
parameters:
•

Person-Centric – our success is measured by the well-being of our service-users

•

Locality – clarity of where are the service-users we have to progressively reach

•

Community Partnership – activating people to look out for themselves, reinforcing them by
bridging them to larger community resources

•

Information – to ferry all stakeholders and keep them on board with timely and relevant
information
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We decided to begin by focusing our resources on the low-income families within Central
Singapore District with a view to reaching the rest of Singapore. 22% of Central Singapore’s
188,925 residents are below 19 years old and from the Singapore Population Census, 11% of
these children and youths would be considered low-income as their family’s per capita income
would be below $450. Hence, the coverage for our target clientele could be 20,782. However,
for a start, we would like to reach the bottom 5% and this number works out to 9,446. Our plan
is to progressively reach these 9,000 odd, support them and to follow their progress till they are
into adulthood.

For FY12, we will have 9 programmes that will enable us to continue providing our continuum
of service. Problems will be de-escalated so that young people can be cared for and supervised
by their families. Families will be supported and strengthened to do so and eventually
integrated as contributing members of their neighbourhood and communities.

The 9 programmes are:
Problem De-escalation

Family Strengthening

Community Integration

1. Babes

3. Family Learning Centre

6. Beautiful People

2. Juvenile Justice in the

4. Family Service Centre

7. Healthy Start Child

Community

Development Centre

5. Hope Outreach

8. Learning Is Fun
& Exciting

9. Youth United
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Youth United will be the largest programme, operating at 5 different localities – Bukit Ho Swee,
Henderson/Redhill, Lengkok Bahru, Whampoa and Ang Mo Kio. We estimate that the
Programme will reach 2500 service-users aged 19 years and below by the end of next year. The
strategy of keeping these service-users out of harm’s way is to facilitate the emergence and
sustainability of restorative neighbourhoods that look out for the well-being of their young
residents.

Sincerely,

Gerard Ee
Executive Director
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3. Introducing Ourselves
3.1 About Us
Beyond Social Services is a charity that guides children and youths from less privileged
backgrounds away from delinquency and other poverty related problems. We hope our work
has a longer-term impact and so we aspire to keep in touch with these young people until they
are 25 years old. We hope that at 25, they would have become responsible citizens who are not
troubled by the social and economic problems they had when we first met them.

To achieve this, we believe that young people need to live within an environment that has their
best interest at heart.

Hence, Beyond works at turning neighbourhoods into caring

communities that provide guidance, care, protection and resources that keep young people in
school and out of trouble.

3.1.1 Who We Serve
Many of the young people we serve have a long family history of hardship and the challenges
they face include the inability to meet basic household expenses, imprisonment of
breadwinners, poor health, chronic addictions and family violence. However, these young
people are resilient and they have dreams and aspirations. With appropriate support from the
community, many move beyond their unfortunate circumstances.

3.1.2 Our Vision & Goals
Beyond’s vision is that by 2025, every child and youth in Singapore, despite a disadvantaged
background has the opportunity to refuse a lifestyle of delinquency and welfare
dependency. Beyond is guided by the following goals:

•

That children and youths steer clear of crime and drugs;

•

That children and youths achieve educational success that enables them to earn a living
and realise a more meaningful life;

•

That children and youths are prepared to become responsible adults who manage their
families or households competently.
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•

That parents, children and youths attain skills that enable them to manage money
prudently for their long-term financial needs;

•

That parents and caregivers take an active interest in the well-being and development of
their children and youths.

3.1.3 Our Helping Principles
Overall
• We must not act on behalf of clients where there is a potential conflict of interest.
•

It is in the best interests of children to remain with their families or natural support
groups. Residential care must always be a short-term arrangement.

•

Help should build on people’s strengths and not simply remedy their weaknesses.
A helping relationship is a respectful partnership between us and the people we engage.

•

Social problems are best resolved within the community and we avoid criminal or
judicial proceedings where possible.

•

The essence of family life is co-operation, not togetherness.

Child Specific
• Children are not little adults; they are to be treated as children and not by adult
standards;
•

Children and their families no matter how challenging have strengths that can be built
on to help them develop into well-adjusted individuals and nurturing environments
respectively;

•

Challenging behaviours from children are distress signals that their basic needs have not
been met and we need to respond appropriately instead of only controlling their
problem behaviours;

•

When a child is not cooperative, it is because our system is not working and not because
we have a problem child.

•

We will be respectful to children under our care even those who have not yet learned to
behave respectfully and impress on them that they in turn have to be responsible for
their behaviours.

•

Each day, a child should know some joy and look forward to some joy on the next.
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3.1.4 Our Services & Facilities
Our Services are organized into 4 departments:
1.

Juvenile Justice

2.

Child Protection & Family Preservation

3.

Family Services & Community Development

4.

Early Intervention & Prevention

We prefer not to go about building centres or facilities. Wherever possible we will rent, borrow
or cooperate with others to share their existing facilities. Taking this approach we will be able to
grow the work without incurring too much set-up cost. Generally, without the need for
‘permanent’ offices, we can respond to community needs more nimbly.

While our proactive work approach takes us to schools, neighbourhoods, community facilities
and youth haunts, our staff teams and centre-based programmes are housed in the premises
below.

1. 26 Jalan Klinik #01-42/52
Singapore 160026 (registered address)
Telephone: 6375-2940
Facsimile: 6274-0633

2. 5 Delta Avenue #01-09
Singapore 160005
Telephone: 6274-2646
Facsimile: 6272-1923

3. 120 Bukit Merah View #01-04/06
Singapore 152120
Telephone: 6270 2443
Facsimile: 6270-4483

4. 10 Admiralty Road East
Singapore 759988
Telephone: 6499-0288
Facsimile: 6555-7661

5. 75 Whampoa Drive #01-346 & 372
Singapore 320075
Telephone: 6354 9080
Facsimile: 6254 6405
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3.1.5 Our Sources of Funding
Our main source of funding is through fund-raising activities. The Mainly I Love Kids (MILK)
Fund is a key partner that raises funds to support our work.

Operating expenses are also

defrayed by public donations and government grants managed by the National Council of
Social Service and the generosity of philanthropic establishments, commercial corporations and
well-wishers.

3.1.6 How We Work
It is a community that integrates people not an organisation. Beyond as an organisation works
at facilitating an all-inclusive community. We are an entry and focal point for service-users,
staff, volunteers, donors and all who aspire to guide disadvantaged young people away from
the poverty cycle.

Beyond believes that everyone has a role to play in the betterment of our society. While a staff
team runs the organisation, we are fully aware that we cannot achieve our goals without the
support of the community. Thus, Beyond depends substantially on volunteers; people who
support our cause with their time and energy. Volunteers work closely with the staff and play a
crucial role in the realisation of the mission.

3.1.7 Total Number of Persons provided one-off assistance or
outreached to in 2011:1753
Programme

Number of Respondents

Babes SMS Helpline

122

Healthy Start Contacts at KK Hospital

1351

Information and Referral Service at FSC

280
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3.1.8 Total Number of persons served in 2011: 8069
Number of children and youths served

4470

Number of parents and care givers

3599
Total number served

8069

For more information about us, check out www.beyond.org.sg

3.1.9 Our Corporate Information
We are registered as a Society on 7 February 1987 and were previously known as Bukit Ho Swee
Social Service Centre. On 15 October 2001, the organization name was changed to Beyond Social
Services.

Our Unique Entity Number is S87SS0025J and the registered address is Block 26 Jalan Klinik
Unit 01-42/52 Singapore 160026.

We are registered as a charity under Charities Act (Cap 37) on 19 September 1988. Our
Registration Number is 0594 and IPC status (General Fund) is valid till 30 June 2013.

We are a full member of National Council of Social Service.
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3.2 Our Board of Management (Term 2011/12)
President

Mr Stanley Tan

Vice-President

Mr Goh Chee Kong

Honorary Treasurer

Mr Chua Kee Lock

Honorary Secretary

Mr San Shang Hou

Committee Members

Mr Andy Leck
Ms Janet Lyn
Dr Norman Wong (till 29 May 2012)
Mr Quek Suan Kiat (till 4 May 2012)
Dr Tan Poh Kiang

Founder Member Representative

Sr Molly Lim

3.2.1 Banker
DBS Bank

3.2.2 Auditor
Helmi Talib & Co.

3.2.3 Other Advisors
Legal Advisor

Mr Andy Leck

Medical Advisor

Dr Tan Poh Kiang

3.3 Our Honorary Members
Patrons

Dr Sheryn Mah
Mrs Joy Balakrishnan

Honorary Advisor

Dr S. Vasoo

Honorary Member

Mr David Goh, PBM
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3.4 Our Board Committees
3.4.1 Appointment & Nomination Committee
Chair

Mr Chua Kee Lock

Members

Sr Molly Lim
Dr Sheryn Mah
Mrs Joy Balakrishnan

3.4.2 Audit Committee
Chair

Mr Quek Suan Kiat

Members

Ms Chiang Suat Hong
Ms Tan Eng Hwa

3.4.3 Finance & Admin Committee
Chair

Mr Chua Kee Lock

Members

Ms Janet Lyn
Ms Bernadette Lau

3.4.4 Human Resource Committee
Chair

Mr Goh Chee Kong

Members

Mr Franz Yeo
Sr Molly Lim
Mr Seow Choon Chew

14

Beyond Social Services Annual Report 2011
•••

3.4.5 Programme Committee
Chair

Mr Stanley Tan

Members

Dr Tan Poh Kiang
Dr Norman Wong
Dr Goh Han Meng Joel
Mrs Campos-Chia Chiu Leng

3.4.5.1 Healthy Start Child Development Centre Management
Committee
Chair

Assoc Prof Christine Lee

Members

Ms Ong Ai Hua

3.4.6 Volunteer Committee
Chair

Mr San Shang Hou

Members

Mr Andrew Ng Kok Beng
Mr Chalvin Seah Yi Yang
Mr Hwang Jeng-Ming
Mr Marc Lim
Mr Ng Boon Teck
Ms Tan Wei Ni
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3.5 Related Party Transactions
This information is provided in compliance with the Code of Governance for Charities &
Institutions of a Public Character issued by The Charity Council on 19 January 2011. Below are
the list of our Patrons, Board Members and Board Committee Members who are also serving
with the MILK Fund.
Name

Designation at the MILK Fund

1. Dr Sheryn Mah

President

2. Mr Stanley Tan

Vice-President

3. Mrs Joy Balakrishan

Honorary Secretary

4. Ms Janet Lyn

Ordinary Committee Member

5. Mr Chua Kee Lock

Member

6. Mrs Campos-Chia Chiu Leng

Member

There is no related party transaction in the year.

3.6 The Staff Management Team
Executive Director

Mr Gerard Ee (appointed since 1 June 1991)

Deputy Executive Director

Ms T Ranganayaki

Assistant Directors

Mr Andrew Loh
Ms Christina Joy Eruthyanathan
Ms Farizah Abdul Rahman
Ms Gloria Dom
Ms Martha Chai
Ms Pascale Paul
Ms Lim Shaw Hui
Mr Vincent Lim
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3.7 Additional Information
3.7.1 Key Office Holders:
S/
No

Name

Occupation

Designation & Date
of Appointment in
Current Office

Designation & Date
of Appointment to
1st Key Office

1.

Mr Stanley Tan

Entrepreneur

President – From
2011 to current

Honorary Treasurer
– From 2001 to 2002

2.

Mr Chua Kee Lock

Venture
Capitalist

Honorary Treasurer
– From 2011 to
current

Honorary Treasurer
– From 2007 to 2008

3.

Mr San Shang Hou

Engineer

Honorary Secretary
– From 2010 to
current

Honorary Secretary
– From 2010 to
current

3.7.2 Reserves policy
Fund raising income usually reduces during periods when the economy is not doing well but it
is also during these periods that beneficiaries need help all the more. It was decided during the
20th Annual General Meeting held on Saturday, 18 March 2006 that we will not keep a reserve
fund that is more than 3 years of our operating budget.

The reserves are monitored and reviewed periodically by the Board, ensuring that the work is
always supported.

The principal funding sources are government subvention (MSF, Tote Board, NCSS and MOH)
and donations from partners, well-wishers, friends and public. There are no funds in deficit.
The tabulation of funds are as follows:-
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Our reserves position:
Year 2011
In S$

Year 2010

% Increase/
(Decrease)
5,048,955
(28)

Unrestricted Funds (Reserves)
Designated Funds:
-Beautiful People Fund
-Beyond Champions Fund
-Cirque Du Monde Fund
-Educational Assistance Fund
-Employee Welfare Fund
-Family Assistance Fund
-Healthy Start Emergency Fund
-School Pocket Money Fund

3,655,912
164,226
6,237
292
52,074
92,027
13,295
0
24,217
352,368

125,149
11,086
292
67,414
92,027
32,877
21,835
2,794
353,474

Total Funds1

4,008,280

5,402,429

(26)

Ratio of Reserves2 to Annual Operating
Expenditure3

0.70

0.96

(26)

Legend:*funds returned to MSF (previously MCYS)
1 Total funds include unrestricted general and designated funds.
2 Unrestricted General Funds.
3 Charitable activities and other operating and administration expenses.

18

31
(44)
(22)
(60)
See (*)
767
(0.3)
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4. Overview of Services
4.1 Our Strategy
As a result of a strategic planning exercise in 2001, we crafted a strategic profile to guide us.
The profile was periodically reviewed and updated. This year following a Programme Review,
the profile was updated as follows:

Beyond’s Strategic Profile
We exist to steer children and youths away from delinquency and poverty related ills.
We are currently focusing our resources on the low-income families within Central
Singapore District with a view to reaching the rest of Singapore.

We will adopt a proactive and holistic approach by being an Advocate, Enabler and
Motivator. Our programmes will protect vulnerable children and youths and increase
protective factors in the community.
We will be a leading agency as well as a voice to bring about positive government
policies that promote an all-inclusive society, an adequate network of community
partners and a low juvenile delinquency rate.
(updated 2011)

4.2 Our Continuum of Services
Our programmes are the ‘doors’ by which our service-users come to us but our work as a whole
follows a similar continuum. We move our service-users beyond a crisis or problem; stabilise
them by strengthening their families and support networks and enable them to reintegrate back
to their communities. This way our service-users become resilient enough to handle their
problems, while supported by their extended family and community, and move beyond the
need for professional support
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Our programmes are managed within the following departments which are named after their
core function:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Juvenile Justice
Child Protection & Family Preservation
Family Services & Community Development
Early intervention & Prevention.

Each department emphasises an area of work within our continuum of service. This report is
presented according to the work areas of Problem & Crisis De-escalation, Family Strengthening
& Community Integration.

A.

B.

C.

PROBLEM & CRISIS

FAMILY

COMMUNITY

DE-ESCALATION

STRENGTHENING

INTEGRATION

Juvenile Justice

•

Babes

•

Juvenile
Justice in the
Community

•

Child Protection
& Family
Preservation

•

•

Restorative
Care
Family
Learning
Centre

Youth United

•

Family Services &
Community
Development

Early intervention
& Prevention

•

Hope Scheme

•

Healthy Start Child
Development Centre

•

Family Service
Centre

•

Healthy Start
Programme

Juvenile Justice in
Schools

•

Kids United Daily Care

•

Learning Is Fun &
Exciting

•

Safe Kids
o

Campland
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4.3 Our Roles as Advocate, Enabler and Motivator
4.3.1 Advocate
Advocacy is our effort to

•

draw attention to the needs and challenges of those we serve;

•

gain public support for initiatives that address those needs and challenges;

•

highlight the unintended effects of laws, policies and practices that affect our ability to
carry out our work;

•

provide feedback on the impact of national policies and programmes as experienced by
the service user;

•

the initiation of programmes, practices and policies that bring about a more restorative
landscape for children, youth and families thus, promoting an all-inclusive society.

4.3.2 Enabler
Social service programmes run by professionals run the risk of discouraging community led
efforts to care for their vulnerable members. Thus, our role is to nurture community leadership
and when it may be necessary for us to drive an activity; we plan how to transfer leadership to
the community. As an enabler we are close to ground and through the voices of service-users,
we experience the impact of policies, programmes and deepen our understanding of social
issues.

4.3.3 Motivator
We believe that wherever possible, the non-profit sector should seek to grow by collaboration
rather than competition. Sharing and cooperation maximises organisational resources and
increases the possibility of our beneficiaries receiving a better quality of services. Thus, as
motivator we will facilitate:

• networks, alliances & friendships that promote cooperation and collaborations;
• the sharing of expertise, knowledge and resources to enable the replication of
programmes or to increase service-user participation; the building of sector capability
and capacity through formal and informal training programmes.
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5. Problem & Crisis De-escalation
5.1 Overview of Work Area
Problem & Crisis De-escalation is work that provides children, youths and families with a
restorative way of dealing with delinquency issues within the community rather than through
the legal system. It is an approach that empowers young people to put right what they have
done wrong with the support of their family, community and others who have their interest at
heart. This is in line with our helping principle that social problems are best resolved within the
community; and here we empower families and communities to do so.

The 4 core areas which are essential to problem & crisis de-escalation work:
1. Advocacy. This happens at 4 points:

•
•
•
•

Pre-police involvement
Pre-charge
Pre-sentencing/Pre-order
Pre-release

2. Crisis Management
3. Case Management
4. Programme Work

5.2 Advocacy
5.2.1Pre-police involvement
When young people are discovered to have committed an offence by their family, school or the
public and we have been informed in a timely manner, we work towards resolving the issue in
a manner that addresses the interest of all concerned especially that of the victim. The objective
at this stage is to empower families and communities to resolve matters so that police
involvement is not needed.
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Case example:
A 16 year old boy staying in a 1 room rental flat asked for help when he felt that his
experimentation with drugs was getting out of hand. We kept his family informed and
engaged him in various activities so that he was meaningfully occupied. We also linked
him to an adult volunteer who had much experience assisting others with dependency
issues. Finally, we arranged for the youth to sit for his GCE ‘N’ level exams and secured
Financial Assistance for his family.

5.2.2 Pre-charge
When young people are caught by the police, we would advocate on behalf of them for an
opportunity to avoid criminal proceedings with the young people honouring their obligation to
put things right. The objective at this stage is to empower families and communities to resolve
matters so that court proceedings are not necessary.

Case example:
We coordinated a family conference for a 19 year-old youth who was caught in a
departmental store for theft. The purpose of the conference was for the family to come up
with a plan to put things right with the departmental store. They also had to ensure that
they could provide adequate supervision for the 19 year old.
The departmental store accepted the youth’s apology and offer to make restitution over 5
months. They were also satisfied that she was remorseful and her family could supervise
her adequately. A report of the family meeting was sent to the police explaining how the
youth had put things right and kept herself meaningfully occupied. Eventually, the police
did not proceed with charges but issued her with a stern warning.

5.2.3 Pre-sentencing/Pre-order
When young people are already in the judicial system, we work towards the court making an
order or a sentence for supervision in the community. The young people, their family and
community are guided to contribute actively towards this plan which is an important part of
the mitigation process. The objective at this stage is for the young person to remain well cared
for and supervised in the community so that institutionalisation or incarceration is not
necessary.
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Case example:
A 17 year old took a lady’s handbag with the aim of selling it and contributing to his
family’s expenses. As his family was unable to post bail, he was remanded for 3 weeks.
During that period, we supported his family as they came up with a care and
supervision plan for the court’s consideration. Eventually, the court ordered the youth
to serve his probation in the community.

5.2.4 Pre-release
When young people in institutions have the option to be released into the community subject to
adequate family and community support; we advocate by harnessing this support. The
objective at this stage is to expedite the young person’s discharge to supportive care-givers.

No cases of this nature were received for the year.

5.2.5 Distribution of Advocacy Efforts
Pre-police
Pre-charge
Pre-sentencing
Pre-release
Total

5
7
5
0
17

5.3 Crisis Management
When a crisis happens, the priority would be to de-escalate the situation so that the family and
natural support networks can continue to be the primary care-givers. A crisis for young people
may include an unplanned pregnancy, the threat of being filed for Beyond Parental Control,
being caught red-handed by the shopkeepers for theft, neglect, abuse, family violence and so
forth. The objective here is to de-escalate and defuse explosive and volatile situations in a way
that achieves family stability for young people so that the police, legal and welfare systems are
not needed.
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Crisis management work involves:

• activating community resources to locate missing youths;
• providing basic necessities for client/families;
• mediation and negotiation skills involved in situations of unplanned pregnancy,
violence as well as suicide;
• daily contact with the clients (either through home visits/phone calls);
• involving authorities (police) without jeopardizing the relationship with the clients (in
situations where it is necessary to make a police report.)

5.3.1 Examples of Crisis Management
a. 5 parents who were on the verge of filing for Beyond Parental Control were persuaded
from not doing so. On their behalf, we rallied support from their relatives and friends.
With their support, alternative care and supervision plans were put in place and the
youths remained well cared for in their community.

5.4 Case Management
This involves working intensively with young people and their significant others to reach a
hopeful resolution to the problematic situation they are experiencing. We seek to understand
the expectations and perspectives of different stakeholders and we engage them to work
together as a network of support for the young people. We believe that all stakeholders have
strengths that can contribute to the solution. Our role is to work with these strengths so that
young people are supported to stay on the right side of the law, to stay in school or be
purposefully occupied.

We have been working more closely with parents and the family network as a result of a
greater focus placed on family strengthening.

5.4.1 Examples of Family Work in Case Management
a. A family weekend was organised by a 16 year-old daughter for her stepfather who just
returned from incarceration. The family had a barbecue going and spent a day at the
beach celebrating a surprise birthday for the stepfather.
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b. A Mother’s Day meal and spa was organised for a group of 5 mothers to recognise their
efforts in managing the household.
c. A mother and her daughter were taken for a meal and a photo shoot to rebuild their
strained relationship.

5.5 About the Programmes in the Juvenile Justice
Department
Programme work can be more targeted at youths with a specific issue, ie. teenage pregnancy; or
it can be preventive in nature, i.e. restorative practice in schools and youth outreach work.

Juvenile Justice

Beneficiaries

1. Babes

Caregivers
49

89

2. Juvenile Justice in the Community

109

286

3. Youth United

300

176

Total

458

551

1. Babes – For teens with child and the child in them
A Pregnancy Crisis Service for Teens SMS 8111 3535 or call 1800-Teen Mom
www.babes.org.sg
Babes is a teenage pregnancy helpline that aims to support pregnant teens in making an
informed decision, with the involvement of significant others.
We guide teenagers who are experiencing a pregnancy crisis so that they do not take the drastic
step of abandoning their baby. We do this by proactively publicising the programme, providing
information, support and community resources that nurture responsible decision making and
behaviours.
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We received a total of 158 enquiries (of which 79 were from teenagers) either through the Babes
helpline or referrals regarding pregnancy-related issues. We met up face to face and journeyed
with 49 girls through their decision-making process, of which 36 were new cases. Of these 36
cases, 28 girls chose to keep their babies, 2 gave their babies up for adoption, 5 girls decided on
an abortion, and one was found to not be pregnant. We provided necessary practical assistance
and worked closely with the families, schools as well as employers of these girls to support
them in their decisions.

Case example :
A pregnant 19 year-old girl was staying with the father of the baby at a hotel in
Geylang. As the boyfriend’s salary was not quite enough to meet the room charges,
they ran the risk of being homeless as both were estranged from their families. Upon
her coming to us, we linked the girl with a part time administrative job and provided
her with some food rations. We also got in touch with their families.
Eventually, they could leave the hotel for the home of a family friend who as an older
woman was a source of support and guidance for the 19 year old. After the birth of the
child, the couple made plans to get married. They reconciled with the boyfriend’s side
of the family who rendered financial support.

The family also arranged for

accommodation and the couple was able to focus on their responsibilities as parents.

2. Juvenile Justice in the Community
To help young persons and their significant others reach a restorative resolution to the
problematic situation they are experiencing. Wherever needed, we divert young persons away
from the juvenile justice system or institutionalization and work with them and their support
network to keep them on track in the community. This is done through advocacy, intensive
family work and putting in place care and supervision plans that achieve a satisfactory level of
stability for the young person.
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3. Youth United
We outreach to youths residing or hanging around lower income neighbourhoods to curb
delinquency, anti-social and other harmful behaviours among them. We are an adult friend
that advocates for them to be engaged in community activities and contributing to the
community’s wellbeing. We are a resource that encourages the community to adopt restorative
approaches towards the management of juvenile delinquency and other youth related issue. To
be effective we have to continually cultivate partnerships with family groups, grassroots
organizations, the police, youth-serving agencies and our larger community.

5.6 A Brief Reflection
There was good cooperation with youth serving agencies, family service centres and other
stakeholders. This network was important in supporting our work. For instance, volunteers
from We Care Community Services often supported our youths and their families with
substance dependency issues.

Some youths who developed an interest in dragon boating

eventually joined a dragon boat programme offered by REACH Family Service Centre.

Problem & Crisis De-escalation required some know-how from the professionals to help
service-users navigate the legal and other framework. It also provided an important
opportunity for issues to be solved by families and the community. However, it is just a first
step and from the onset, we need to keep in view how families can be strengthened and how
communities can play a part in integrating the service-users and their families.

In sum, this remains an important approach for supporting and strengthening families for the
long run.
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5.8 Staff
Assistant Directors

Ms Lim Shaw Hui
Ms Christina Joy Eruthyanathan

Programme Managers

Ms Leela Narayanasamy till 2 June
Ms Lena-Anne Shome
Mr Jerry Quah
Mr Pathma Thanapallam
Mr Stephen Rajah

Community Workers

Mr Abdul Rashid
Ms Boersma Mei Li till 22 Oct
Mr Iskandar Latiff
Ms Jasmine Tan
Mr Nicholas Yu
Ms Nur Irfah Abdul Majeed
Mr Shasikaran Kalimuthu
Ms Virginie Forget
Mr Yao Peikang

Associates
Circus & Music Trainers

Ms Andrea Ousley from 1 Jun to 7 Jul
seconded from Cirque du Soliel
Ms Ng Wang Feng

Soccer Coach

Mr Augustine Arlando
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6. Family Strengthening
6.1 Overview
Family strengthening is a framework for serving children and families that is rooted in the
principle that family is the most fundamental factor influencing the lives and outcomes of
children; and families are strong when they are respected for their desire to remain as a family
and provided with the necessary support to overcome their challenges.

There are 3 core areas which are essential to strengthening families:
1. Family Economic Success
2. Strong Family Support
3. A Sense of Community
When we journey with the families on the issues they seek help with, we are mindful of
opportunities where we can enhance these core areas.

6.2 Our Reflection
The year has been a precious learning for us. It has been our privilege being with the families as
they allowed us to journey with them during both their difficult and joyful moments. The
constant proximity in the helping relationship moved us away from being problem-focused and
allowed us to understand and view the problem as an invitation from the families to appreciate
their lives in a holistic way.

6.2.1 Important learning that emerged in Family Strengthening Work
Space – We need to create the “space” for families who are over stressed and under-supported
to address their issues. Their daily challenges and routine leaves them with no physical, mental
and emotional space to look at their issues. Providing a space to relax, to bond and to share as a
family, is an important step towards problem-solving.
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Families know best - Each family taught us a little more about who they are as each have their
own world view shaped by their own experiences. By learning and appreciating their strengths
and wisdom, most were able to organise themselves quite effectively to resolve their issues.
Also, we learned that by letting families set the pace of “change”, they took ownership of their
issues. People ultimately know what is best for themselves and there is no need for helping
professionals like us to behave like we know better.

Begin quickly and build on the experience – Families tend to delay addressing an important
issue as the idea of “counselling & problem-solving” is rather daunting. We found that taking
small action steps such as a family outing, a weekend stay at our Family Learning Centre and
other simple ways of getting started encouraged families tremendously. These interventions,
which are not beyond their life sphere, often gave the family “positive experiences” that they
cherished as a reference point for “more work.” Thus, working on family issues was not such
an unpleasant thing to do and we found it always easier to build on positives than to rectify
negatives.

The journey is just as important as the destination – Many of the families that came to us were
not able to achieve the goals that our programmes set out to achieve e.g. a higher income, more
regular employment or better school performance. However, by attempting to work on goals,
they gained the positive experience of drawing on their own resources to manage on their own.
They took charge in a way where the presence of the helping professional was minimal; which
for us is a very good result.

As helping professionals, we design programmes with goals that make sense from a planner or
a funder’s perspective. These goals are reasonable but a helping relationship does not simply
“switch on” when funding begins. For these relationships to be effective there must be mutual
trust and a key aspect of our work is to create the conditions where this trust can come about.
Helping stakeholders’ to appreciate the nature of the work would also be an important role we
have to play.

When one door closes another opens – Managing by objectives in a rigid sense can be very
discouraging as life situations can take dramatic turns. We need to have the ability to set each
turn as yet another opportunity towards family strengthening. We need to adapt to the changes
if we are to fulfil the purpose of our programmes.
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We brought 5 families together to support each other in their efforts to keep their children away
from inhalant abuse. Unfortunately, soon after, some of these children were placed in an
institution. We were unable to bring them back to the family but facilitated meaningful family
time when the children returned to their families on weekends. This led to improved
relationships and communication. Despite not having their children with them, these families
continued to take an active interest in our work and volunteered to cook and look out for the
other children during community events.

6.2.2 Some achievements
Good participation at our Family Learning Centre - In total, 36 families came to FLC last year
and some family strengthening activities took place outside of the FLC location such as a trip to
the Zoo or to the swimming pool as a family. Out of these, 16 were external referrals from
SANA.

Successful completion of care & supervision plans – Families who had difficulties caring for
their children often succeeded in stabilising their situations with the support of extended family
and friends. The care and supervision plans that ensured the safety and wellbeing of the
children were important in keeping their children out of institutional care.

We made strong family ties visible – All families came to us with some trepidation as coming
to social services is an admission of having failed in some way. The approach of journeying
with families within their life sphere and in a non-clinical manner brought out their ability to
care and look out for each other. We facilitated support from extended family and friends and
the importance of such loose ties became apparent. Relationships keep families strong and it
was clear for all to see.

Sometimes, we did not have to bring the extended family together to make strong family ties
visible. One example was when we arranged for a single mother of 4 children to have some
private time with her eldest daughter who was coming home late and irregular at school to do
some “girls” stuff. In the process, the initial “girls” chatter turned into a “mother-daughter”
discussion about various challenges in her daughter’s life. Both mother and daughter told us
that the activity helped them re-establish their relationship and the daughter’s attendance at
school improved. At the end of the year, she proudly announced to us that she has been
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appointed the class monitor and is responsible for encouraging classmates to attend school
regularly.

In conclusion, for family strengthening to happen, families must have ownership of their
difficulties. These challenges should not be unilaterally defined by the helping profession and if
we want to do our work well, we have to engage the families as consultants on what is best for
them.

6.3 About the Programmes in this Work Area
6.3.1 Main Programmes
Number of persons served
Programmes with an emphasis

Healthy Start

683

Care-givers
& adult family
members
321

Kids United

80

103

Restorative Care

76

304

839

728

on Family Strengthening

Total number served

Young
people

1. Healthy Start
We will seek out infants and preschoolers from disadvantaged families and ensure that their
physical, intellectual, emotional and social developmental needs are met. We will do this
through outreach activities, linking them to early childhood education programmes, educating
their care givers and monitoring their home environments. This early intervention will enable
them to discover their potential to learn and provide them a strong foundation for primary
school education. To be effective we need to work closely with the government, Healthy Start
Programme Operators and other community partners.
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2. Kids United Daily Care and Guidance
We provide stability, care and guidance for children with severe social disadvantages so that
they steer away from delinquency and pre-mature school leaving. We work in partnership with
families, schools and others in the community to keep them safe, well-cared for and developing
to their full potential. Children should leave our programme as resilient individuals who
cooperate with their families, contribute to their community and keep their lives on track.

3. Restorative Care
We support youths receiving institutional care to lead a pro-social lifestyle. We believe that
restorative work begins in in-care and we help youths acquire a sense of hope, responsibility
and skills in moral reasoning. We work in partnership with their families and community
resources to build adequate support networks and a sense of belonging for the youths.

6.3.2 Support Programmes
Number of persons
Support Programmes with an emphasis

served

on Family Strengthening
Young
people

Care-givers
& adult
family
members

*persons served by these programmes have already been counted in a
main programme
Family Learning Centre
Safe Kids
Total number served

144

117

71

187

215

304
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1. Family Learning Centre
What We Do
We provide guidance, resources and a healing space for families experiencing multiple
problems to work through their difficulties so that they achieve a sense of stability and
wellbeing for its members.

How We Do It
We work in partnership with these families, build on their inherent strengths, strengthen
relationships and encourage them to attempt solutions that help them regain a sense of control
and competency in their lives.

Why We Do It This Way
We believe that families come in different shapes and they are functional in their own ways.
Broken families do not necessarily make broken homes.

2. Safe Kids
We work towards children and young persons, who are potentially in need of care or
protection, being safe and well-cared for in their kampongs. We facilitate the support and
assistance necessary to foster strong families and community networks; empowering families to
take responsibility for the safety and care of their children and to participate effectively in
decisions regarding their children. We adopt a collaborative approach in working with families,
community, and the State’s Child Protection and Welfare system.

6.4 Staff
Assistant Director

Ms Martha Chai
Ms Pascale Paul from 1 Sep
Mr Vincent Lim
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Managers

Ms Kalpana Kanderaju
Mr Pathma Thanapallam
Mr Yet Tun Hoong

Community Workers

Ms Adrina Tie

(Healthy Start)

Ms Christina Padman
Mr Geoffrey Aw
Ms Joanne Yau
Ms Phoeon Tan Pui San
Ms Tow Geok Yun till 10 Aug
Mr Valerio Rireh
Mr Vicnesh Mathavan

Community Workers

Ms Hannah Ramos

(Daily Care and Guidance)

Ms Marilyn Ann Sundram
Ms Najma Banu
Ms Wong Pei Ling
Mr Vincent Kwek

Community Workers

Ms Anne-Marie Ong

(Restorative Care)

Mr Norman Torres till 7 Sep

Programme Assistants

Mr Bienvenido Argamosa

(Family Learning Centre)

Ms Jesusa Alava till 14 Aug

Community Workers

Mr Lyn John Pereira

(Safe Kids)

Mr Samuel Tang
Ms Stella Jayanthi
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7. Community Integration and
Development
7.1 Overview
The work here is built on the operating principle that when children and youths are integrated
as responsible members of their community, they are less likely to get into trouble and the
community is more likely to look out for their best interest. We seek to identify and support
protective factors within the environments and relationships that are significant for children
and youths. These include their peer groups, their families, their schools and their
neighbourhoods.

7.1.1 Desired Outcomes
The teams within this area work towards their programme goals by supporting and activating
resources and community stakeholders to achieve the following:
a.

A culture of learning and education in neighbourhoods where the children and youths
we serve reside;

b.

A high level of volunteerism and community participation among the children, youths
and their care-givers;

c.

Schools that thrive on the challenge of nurturing young people with multiple
challenges and are a pillar in the community for the well-being of its young people;

d.

Neighbourhoods that adopt a restorative approach towards young offenders and
families with multiple challenges.

7.1.2 Key Stakeholders
Community Integration and Development requires us to work with 3 key groups:
a.

The service-users and their natural support network;

b.

The service-users’ local community;

c.

The larger community.
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a. The service-users and their natural support network
The focus is their participation in community life or their volunteering efforts. Helping out at
our programmes can be a start but in the longer run, leadership or volunteering in other formal
or informal community initiatives will strengthen their sense of belonging and integrate them
into their communities.

b. The service-users’ local community
The focus is getting stakeholders in the local community to value and encourage the civic
participation efforts of our service-users. By doing so, a more inclusive community will evolve
and over time the community will gain the confidence to tackle its problems and concerns
instead of simply relying on the authorities to resolve them. Stakeholders include individuals,
informal groups, neighbourhood organisations, businesses, religious congregations, grassroots
leaders, welfare groups, schools, the police, relevant government offices and so forth.

c. The larger community
The focus is the mobilisation of resources to help communities develop from the inside-out.
Gifts of Charity in kind, cash or events will be steered towards the strengthening of the serviceusers, their natural support networks and their local community.

7.2 Reflections
We intensified our level of engagement in the neighbourhoods by making asset-based
community profiling an on-going feature of our work. Unlike a needs assessment where we
seek a profile of the needs and deficiencies of people, we started on the basis that people had
talents and abilities they could share to make life better for everyone in their neighbourhood.

With the help of volunteers, we knocked on every door of the rental housing units and
eventually got in touch with more than 40 percent of the residents. After introducing ourselves
as an agency who is interested in the well-being of children and youths in their neighbourhood,
we asked them if they could volunteer to help make the neighbourhood a better place for their
young. We took note of their talents and abilities with a view that they were important
resources that could be tapped on for the betterment of their community.
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With a repository of the gifts residents bring, we sought or created opportunities where these
gifts could be exchanged. An example that comes to mind was us responding to a request from
several residents to discuss the issue of food rations. We passed the word out to those who
indicated a desire to volunteer that we were organising a discussion about food rations. More
than 20 persons showed up and when the meeting began, participants complained about their
lack of food and aired their grievances about the welfare system and various authorities. We
stopped them after a while and reminded them that they were there because they indicated a
desire to assist others. Immediately, the group quietened down and started listening to each
other talk about the needs of their neighbours. As such the needs of an elderly couple came to
light and all present created a roster to ensure that the elderly couple had food every day.

Our message to the residents in the neighbourhoods was that they could help themselves and it
was our role to facilitate this by linking them to appropriate resources where and when
necessary. We facilitated meetings among residents to capture the aspirations they had for
themselves and their neighbourhood. These meetings were well received and both young and
old worked together to bring about various community events with the blessings of their
grassroots leaders. Over time, grassroots leaders viewed and appreciated these residents as
neighbours who contributed to the well-being of their community.

The positive sentiments of the grassroots leaders indicated that our efforts at community
integration were working and as people got used to the idea of resolving issues themselves
instead of simply going to the authorities, we introduced the idea of restorative justice and its
practices.

On matters related to “undesirable” youth activities in the neighbourhood, we

worked closely with residents young and old to engage the youths. Such efforts were
encouraged by the police as wherever possible, they would avoid using the law to address
youthful indiscretions. The police were good partners who believed in resolving
neighbourhood concerns with youth development programmes instead of the law.

In sum, youths, their families, neighbours and all other stakeholders in neighbourhoods
resonated with the self-help and empowerment approaches we took. While, some still find it
confusing and uncomfortable, preferring for their issues to be resolved by an authority figure,
we are confident that the community integration approach leads to active citizenry which is
really for those we serve, the way beyond social services.
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Apart from neighbourhoods, we also regarded schools as communities and attempted to build
restorative climates among those who were interested.

We provided teacher training,

experiential learning activities, facilitation of circles and conferences. As a result of the teacher
training sessions, some schools began using talking circles to strengthen the relationships
between teachers and students as well as conferences to resolve conflicts.

Examples of restorative approaches in schools:
a. On the first day of the 2nd semester, an entire school used Talking Circles to welcome
the students back from the June break. Both teachers and students shared about their
holiday break as well as expectations of the class. These mutual expectations were
written and put up in the classrooms to remind students of their targets for the rest of
the year.
b. A few boys were playing a game that they invented called the “Paiseh Punch”. It was all
supposed to be fun but it ended unexpectedly. The game became a bullying issue and
things got ugly. Instead of punishing the boys readily or sending them to the Discipline
Master, the school took a restorative approach, called the 7 students and their parents
(both perpetrators’ and victims’ parents) and resolved the issue through an informal
conference. The parents shared how they felt and the perpetrators were sorry as they did
not expect that things would go out of hand. The perpetrators’ parents offered to pay
for the victims’ medical fees.

Activity

No. of schools/

No. of people

organisations
Restorative Practice Training

12

560 (teachers and VWO staff)

Campland

3

395 (students and teachers)

Circles/conferences (with or

5

1452 (students, teachers and parents)

without our involvement)
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7.3 About the Programmes in this Work Area
Number of persons served
Programmes with an emphasis on Community
Integration and Development

Healthy Start Child Development Centre

Young
people

Care-givers
& adult family
members

65

37

HOPE Scheme

865

981

Family Service Centre

431

302

1361

597

451

179

3173

2096

Juvenile Justice in Schools
Learning Is Fun & Exciting (LIFE)
*only those not served by other programmes
Total number served

1. Healthy Start Child Development Centre
We provide an early childhood programme for children below 6 years old whose
developmental and learning needs have been hindered by their social disadvantages. These
children should leave our programme ready for primary school and our Centre should serve as
a focal point that encourages the value of education as well as a culture of learning among the
families of our children and within the neighbourhoods where they live. We will do this by
providing a quality environment and a pre-school curriculum that nurtures children’s growth
emotionally, socially, cognitively and physically. We will also be a warm and welcoming place
that actively involves parents and care-givers to take an active interest in their children’s
education.

2. HOPE Scheme
We help families with little resources access and remain on the HOPE Scheme so that they can
upgrade their work skills, increase their family income and better provide for the educational
needs of their children. We will help them optimise their participation and strengthen their
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links and bonds to mainstream community. When necessary we will place families with other
appropriate services or programmes. We are mindful that in our attempt to promote the HOPE
Scheme we will be respectful of families who have chosen to have more than 2 children.

3. Family Service Centre
We support the well-being of families with dependent children; especially those from a socially
disadvantaged background. We do this by facilitating their access to social services, financial
and other resources; enhancing their ability to achieve economic success and strengthening their
integration into their neighbourhoods or communities. We will also work proactively with
other stakeholders in the community to bring about a network of support that protects such
families from disintegrating and towards these families becoming active & contributing
members of their communities.

4. Juvenile Justice in Schools
We give students who offend and those at risk of dropping out of school or delinquency, the
support to remain in school and out of trouble with the law. We work in partnership with the
school, home and the community to provide a holistic approach towards delinquency
management. Our efforts should also bring about schools who thrive on the challenge of
nurturing young people with multiple challenges and are a pillar in the community for the
well-being of its young people;
4.1 Campland
Campland is an adventure learning programme that encourages children facing multiple
challenges to stay in school and out of trouble. We work with Primary Schools to reach
these students early and to put in place protective factors that will help them stay clear of
trouble. It is a sub-programme of Juvenile Justice in Schools

5. Learning is Fun and Exciting (LIFE)
We help children who are facing multiple challenges, to attain their age appropriate literacy
level so that they may have a fighting chance to further their education. We will do so by
strengthening their English; which is the working language. This will then enable them to
develop literacy skills in other areas. LIFE will also build into its curriculum, opportunities for
children to pursue their interests and to develop their character. To be effective, we will be a
driver to ensure that children, their families and schools work cooperatively in the context of
the programme.
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7.4 Staff
Assistant Directors

Ms Farizah Abdul Rahman
Ms Gloria Dom

Programme Managers

Ms Cecilia Teo
Ms Leela Narayanasamy till 2 Jun
Ms N Rajaletchumiy
Ms Tan Hooi Boon

Community Workers

Ms Dhingra Prerna Anil Kumar from 1 Jul
Mr George Joseph
Ms Irene Murayao Abao from 16 Aug
Ms Karen Goh till 30 Jun
Mr Lyn John Pereira
Mr Mark Anthony
Ms Rachel Ng till 30 Jun
Ms Rumpa Gupta
Ms Sarojathevi Manickam
Ms Thiviya d/o Thiyaga Rajan
Ms Vera Turner
Ms Zeng Wanyi
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Social Work Assistant

Ms Charissa Leow
Ms Kimberly Ho
Ms Rafeah Mohamed Salleh

Learning Co-ordinators

Ms Cheryl Lek
Ms Eva Hamsha
Ms Phun Win Lin

Principal

Ms Lee Hui Huang till 30 April
Ms Kendy Siew from 10 Aug

Administrator

Ms Tan Seok Leng

Teachers

Mr Jason Yeo till 15 Apr
Ms Jean Marie Guittap
Ms Noraidah Helmee
Ms Nurul Izzah Jumail from 21 Jun
Ms Salamiah Bahtiar from 5 Jul
Ms Salwani Ismail
Ms Siti Aisyah Abdul Hadi
Ms Sua Swee Lee

Housekeeper & Cook

Ms Loh Keng Chin
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8. Partnership & Talent Development
8.1 Overview
The department focuses on donor & partner relations, volunteer development, research to
validate Beyond’s work, and talent development. This department is the doorway for larger
community resources to flow into Beyond, whether they are donations in kind, cash or time.
The department also concurrently strengthens resources within Beyond through regular
training and staff development sessions.

These were the key events that the department undertook:

8.2 Donor & Volunteer Relations
8.2.1 Fund raising through appeal letters
A total of $124K

was raised through appeal letters sent to regular donors, partners and

foundations. The fund raising letters are traditionally sent out just before Youth Day in July,
and gives Beyond an opportunity to update our supporters on the work, and the direction.

8.2.2 Unique & meaningful giving
There were many occasions of meaningful giving. We have highlighted a few below:

Festive Giving for Hari Raya & Deepavali
Through the kind donation and support of the Government of Singapore Investment
Corporation (GIC) Recreation Club, 86 families were able to shop for new clothing to celebrate
Hari Raya. In total, 205 adults and 100 children picked out new clothes based on a budget
allocated to them in a chosen store. The staff worked out a budget per family based on the
number of adults and children in the household. This ensured every member of the family had
new clothes.
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Similarly, for Deepavali, festive goodie packs consisting of spices and ingredients for a
sumptuous family meal were given to 115 families who celebrate the festival. The gift also
included a $20 NTUC voucher to purchase fresh food. The gift giving for both these festive
occasions were thoughtful and heartwarming.

Presentation of PA Insurance for Lower Income Families
Insurance companies Asia Capital Reinsurance and SHC Capital provided personal accident
insurance to more than 329 families to cover them for a year, at no cost to the families. This is
the first time insurers have stepped forward to help our families.

Traders Education Scholarship
Traders Hotel, a member of the Shangri La group, offered Education Scholarships to youth to
pursue further courses related to the hospitality sector, while working part-time at the hotel to
gain hands on experience. A total of 6 youths benefitted from the scholarships and work
opportunities.

8.2.3 Volunteer development
Volunteers continued to be engaged in Beyond’s work. There was a lot of support from both
corporate and school based volunteers, without whom the work would not have been possible.
As a result of United World College volunteers, who volunteered every day of the week, we
were able to kick start a community based tuition programme that ran out of RC Centres, and
our office premises. Children were engaged not only in learning, but meaningful activities by
the volunteers.
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8.3 Events
8.3.1 Youth United Day 2011 and its related events
After 10 years of organising the Streetwise Run or the MILK Run as it is was called for a few
years, we discontinued it in 2011. With many runs in Singapore, it had become increasingly
difficult to raise funds through the Run. At heart, the main purpose of the event was its social
purpose, and it being a Youth Day celebrations for all of Beyond’s service users, volunteers and
supporters.
Hence, we started a new tradition called Youth United Day (YU Day) and invited all youth,
their families, donors, volunteers, Board members, and partners to come celebrate youth day
together. Zouk opened its doors again and almost 1500 attended YU Day on Sun, 3rd July 2011.
About 300 youths had also participated in pre-events that included dragon boating, dancing,
soccer and cyber gaming competitions. The event was supported by 40 volunteers.

8.3.2 Living a Liverpool dream
Standard Chartered Bank sponsored a youth and his guardian to watch English Premier
League’s Manchester United vs Liverpool match in Liverpool’s stadium in Anfield on 5th March.
This opportunity was part of Standard Chartered Bank’s “Liverpool Experience Campaign” and
the youth was the winner of a parallel lucky draw the Bank conducted for the children and
youths we serve. The lucky young man, on probation for trouble he had gotten into, obtained
special permission to travel to Anfield, with his elder brother. It was endorsement that despite
his difficulties, the community trusted him and was willing to give him a chance.
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8.4 Talent Development
8.4.1 Family Group Conferencing Certification
The final viva for the Family Group Conferencing Certification that started in 2010 was held on
Feb 18th & 19th and 16 staff and 4 staff from partner agencies were certified as Family Group
Conference co-ordinators. The viva was conducted by faculty representatives from the Potsdam
University of Applied Sciences (Berlin). Participants presented their cases and shared how they
had conducted a Family Group Conference. The course was jointly organised with Potsdam
University, Eigen Kracht Centrale (a University in Amsterdam) and five German state youth
agencies.

8.4.2 Introduction to Models of Family Therapy for Social Service
Practitioners by Benny Bong
A 3 day course from 23-25th May was conducted by Mr Benny Bong for all staff engaged in case
management to enhance their strengths in family work. Mr. Benny Bong is the Director and
Family & Marital Therapist at The Family Therapist. He concurrently holds the appointment as
President, Society Against Family Violence. He is also Beyond’s appointed Counsellor.

8.4.3 Journey Beyond
Ongoing training in the form of Journey Beyond continued so staff could come together twice a
month to gain more knowledge of our work focus, and to share their work.

8.5 Research
8.5.1 Programme Review
Beyond’s programme review concluded on 14th November with a final presentation to the
various stakeholders. One outcome was a data driven approach to the work, and the team will
undertake a Community Assets Survey in neighbourhoods we serve, a Retrospective Study of
past beneficiaries, and Prospective Study of present and future beneficiaries.
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8.5.2 The Singapore Youth Resilience Survey
The Singapore Youth Resilience Survey was conducted in 5 local secondary schools from early
2010 to mid-2011. The data was obtained from a sample of 1,941 Secondary School students
through self-administered questionnaires. It revealed that there was a consistent drop in
resilience for students after Secondary 2. Lower secondary respondents aged 12-15 years, scored
significantly higher in resiliency indicators, felt less stressed in school and had less number of
stressors in general. They were more reluctant to try at-risk activities, as compared to upper
secondary respondents.

This finding is not surprising as it coincides with the stage of adolescent development where
significant biological, cognitive, social and emotional changes occur. We believe that efforts to
increase resilience among upper secondary students will go some way in reducing at-risk
behaviours.

8.6 The Staff
Assistant Director

Ms T Ranganayaki

Community Relations Executive

Ms Jolene Fok
Ms Kalaivani Magantharan

Research Executive

Ms Anuja Hazarika from 1 Dec
Mr Samuel Tang
Mr Seah Pei Kwang

Volunteer Manager

Ms Chiu Ying Yik

Assistant Volunteer Manager

Ms Khairun Nissak Anwar
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9. Finance & Administration
Department
9.1 Overview
The Finance and Administration Department continued to play a key role in ensuring that our
systems and processes as a whole complied with the Charity Council’s Code of Governance.
They provided the essential support for the smooth running of the social work teams and the
organisation as a whole.

9.2 Key tasks carried out
Human Resource Management
• Reviewed the compensation and benefits and Implemented flexi benefits including
health screening to suit staff within different age-ranges;
•

Introduced 2 days a year for staff to volunteer with another Voluntary Welfare
Organisation

Administration
• Implemented paperless receipts for the acknowledgement of donations
•

Completed a Policies and Processes Manual for our Healthy Start Child Development
Centre

•

Revised and updated the Educational and Family Assistance schemes

Information Technology Support
• Introduced a customer relations management system for volunteers and donors
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9.3 The Staff
Assistant Director

Mr Andrew Loh

Managers

Ms Joyce Lee
Ms Liang Mui Mui
Ms Foo Piao Wen from 16/08/2011

Executives

Mr Chew Fook Hong
Ms Fanny Leung
Ms Khoo Mui Kiang
Ms Cecilia Chan
Mr Clanson Lim till 14/02/2011
Ms May Chang from 09/05/2011
Ms Peggy Wong from 08/11/2011

Administrative Assistants

Ms Cindy Loke from 01/02/2011
Ms Helen Ho
Ms Jane Loh
Ms Then Mui Choo
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10. Those who dug into their pockets
Donations from
$50 -$499
Mr Adam Paul Wilson
Mr Adrian Siong Wee NG
Ms Ai Lian CHUA
Ms Ai Ling KHOO
Ms Ai Na YEE
Mr Alen Say Kai NG
Mr Alex Bo Han TANG
Mr Alex Chia Sim SEAH
Ms Amelia Ren Huai SNG
Mr Anand Bindumadhavan
Mr Andi Kasmin
Ms Andra Li Jun CHIN
Mr Andrew Kwan
Ms Angela Soo Keng TAY
Ms Angelina CHNG
Ms Angeline Pei Shan TANG
Ms Angelique KHOO
Ms Ann Verbeek
Miss Ann Wei Ying KOH
Ms Balamani Reddy
Ms Bee Hwong SOH
Mr Benedict Fan Tze HONG
Mr Beng Hong ANG
Mr Benny BONG
Mr Bernard Lap Fung CHAN
Ms Bernardette Carmel
Guek Hua LIM
Mr Bhani s/o M Karthigesu
Mr Boon Chew SOON
Ms Boon Noi QUEK
Mr Brian CU
Mr Calwin Yuli LIM
Ms Caroline Giak
Suan CHEAH
Ms Carolyn I Wan TAY
Ms Carolyn KAN

Ms Chai Choo OH
Ms Chai Foong CHIANG
Mr Chaivanich Nathaphol
Mr Chandan Joshi
Ms Charlotte LOH
Ms Chee Boon LEE
Mr Chee Chung SIT
Mr Chee Keong TAN
Mr Chee Meng WONG
Ms Cheng Cheng TAN
Dr Cheng Lim TAN
Ms Chiew Noi YEO
Mr Chik Mui MOK
Mr Chim Hoon TAN
Mr Chin Choeng CHOW
Mr Chin Fong GOH
Mr Chong Keen LAM
Mr Choon Hung LAI
Ms Chor Eng TAN
Mr Chow Koon Chung
Ms Choy Yee TANG
Mr Chris YEO
Mr Christopher Hsien
Wei ONG
Mr Christopher NG
Mr Chua Heng TAN
Mr Chun Guan LEK
Mr Chun Lay PHUA
Mr Chwee Bock LIM
Ms Chwee Peng CHAN
Ms Clare Kwee Hiong ONG
Mr Collin Chee Yan LEONG
Ms Cynthia Yan May ANG
Mr David H Evans
Mr Dennis Chen Kiong WEE
Mr Derek Chyi Sheong LIM
Mr Derek Kok Ann TAY
Mr Dewaele Jan Guido
Ms Dohadwala Natasha
Najmuddin

Ms Doreen Poh Yen LIM
Ms Doris Sohmen Pao
Mr Eddy Danna XIE
Ms Ee Ing ONG
Ms Eileen Huifen HO
Mr Emril Bin Mohamed Ali
Mr Eng Chuan OH
Ms Eng Eng SEAH
Mr Eng Houw YEO
Mr Eric Yow Kheong LEONG
Mr Ernest Wing Yew LEONG
Mr Eugene Goh
Ms Evelyn Hui Huang KWEK
Ms Evelyn TAN
Mr Fabian Chee Eng CHEW
Ms Fong Ling LEE
Mr Fook Hou LEE
Ms Gadepalli Mallika
Mr Gaurav Goenka
Ms Geak Seam SIM
Mdm Geik Chaik LEONG
Ms Gek Tuan NG
Dr Gerarldine Yee
Fong CHEN
Ms Geraldine Yuen
Kuan KAN
Mr Gim Wah CHEW
Mr Gopinath s/o B Pillai
Ms Grace Wai Yee SEOW
Mr Guan Poh CHNG
Mr Guohua YU
Mr Hak Khoon TAN
Mr Harjeet Ubhi
Mr Henry Setiawan
ONGKOJOYO
Mr Herbert Wei Chien LIAN
Ms Hlaing Aung WAI
Dr Hock Chye WEE
Mr Hock Kiat TAN
Mr Hong Caleb SEOW
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Ms Hong May KONG
Mr Hong Sheng LEONG
Mr How Poo TAN
Ms Hui Huang LEE
Ms Hui Hui LIM
Ms Hui Kwoon THOR
Ms Hui Lyn LEE
Mdm Hwee Eng TAN
Mr Ian McCormack
Ms Irene Teo
Ms Ivy Suat Leng SEAH
Mr Iyer Seshadri
Rishinaradamangalam
V Venkateswaran
Ms. Jacqueline Kai
Wei PANG
Miss Jacqueline LAM
Ms Jacqueline Siew Hui LEE
Ms Janet Yoke Mun YOUNG
Ms Janice Lay Hwee LIM
Ms Janice Shu Fen LIM
Ms Janice YEO
Mr Jason Chon Yin LAI
Mr Jason Yeong Huat LEK
Ms Jean Hwee Yen CHIANG
Mr Jeanbean LIM
Mr Jeffrey Boon Tiong TAN
Mr Jeffrey CHUA
Mr Jeffrey Su Aun ONG
Ms Jeslyn Bee Lian HO
Ms Jessica Shin Jiun GOH
Mr Jimmy Kee Hooi NG
Mdm Jing Li THOH
Ms Jo Pien KOH
Ms Jo-Anna Swee Ling ONG
Ms Joanne WONG
Mr Jonathan SZE
Mr Jonathan Teng Shan HEW
Mr Joon How TAN
Ms Judy Bee Yong ONG
Mr Julian Ng
Ms Juliana Wai Yin CHOW
Ms Jun Yea CHAI
Mr Junchen HONG
Ms Kah Ngoh CHIA

Ms Kah Siok ANG
Ms Kai Ee KOH
Mr Kandikattu Sreenivasa
Prasad
Mr Kar Sian LIM
Ms Karen Meng Keow YEO
Ms Karen Puay Oon CHAN
Mr Keane Deane CHONG
Mr Kee Shee NG
Mr Kee Tong NG
Mr Kelvin Teck Guan LIM
Mr Ken Kian Hong LIM
Mr Khalid Bin Abdul Rahim
Mdm Kheng Choo ANG
Mr Kian Heng PUAH
Mr Kien Soo ONG
Mr Kim Cheong LIM
Mr Kim Hwee LEE
Ms Kim Tee LIM
Mr Kim Tian CHEE
Ms Kim Wee KOH
Mr Kin Hoe LEE
Mr Kin Jun YANG
Mdm Kinn Yhin HO
Mr Kok Heng PEH
Mr Kok Khiang TAY
Mr Kwee Chee YEO
Mr Kwok Who THONG
Mr Lai Hin YEO
Mr Lai Hock PANG
Mr Lai Hong PANG
Ms Laura Lai Fun NG
Ms Lay Lee GOH
Mr Lee Kong POH
Mr Leslie Kwee Hoe CHEW
Ms Li Duan TAN
Ms Li Huang KOH
Ms Liang Hui TAN
Ms Liang Min LOKE
Ms Lily Kar Joo SING
Ms Linda Meow Leng TAN
Mr Lye Huat PANG
Ms Lye Ying LOW
Ms Lynette Yu Hua LIM
Mr M Thevarani

Ms Magdalene Swee
Cheng CHIA
Ms Marianne Su Ling TAN
Ms Marie Poh Suan CHAN
Mr Mark Teong Hoon KO
Ms Mary CHEAH
Ms Megha MEHTA
Ms Melanie LEE
Ms Melissa Marianne KWOK
Me Melissa Wei Ling HENG
Dr Meng Ling FENG
Mr Michael CHEN
Mr Michael TAN
Mr Michael Tat Wai WONG
Mr Michael Wee Perng TOR
Ms Michelle Gek Lin LIM
Mr Ming Hau LEE
Mr Ming Jern Soo
Mr Mohammad Irwan
B Juma’at
Mr Mohottala Sanjaya
Mr Muhammad Haikal
Bin Abdul Majid
Ms Mui Kee NG
Ms Mui Kiang KHOO
Ms Mui Quee WONG
Ms Natalia Suk-Lin GOH
Mr Ngee Seng CHEW
Ms Nisha Deepak
KHEMLANI
Ms Noraini Bte Pani
Mr Oundjian Anthony
Ms Parveen Kau Nagpal
Ms Patricia Choi Wan LOKE
Ms Patricia LIM
Mr Patrick CHEW
Ms Peihui WU
Mr Peng Chuen YIP
Mr Peng Fei LOW
Mr Peng Tuan YAP
Mr Peter Chung Yue HSU
Mr Peter Heng Him LIM
Mr Peter Peng Lock OW
Ms Phang Har LIM
Mr Poh Heng LEE
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Mr Poh Thuan Yang
Lindsay TAN
Ms Puay Noi CHUNG
Ms Ramos Imee Jane Roque
Mr Randall CHIN
Ms Rebecca Yew Cheng POO
Mr Richard Korff
Mr Ronny Chong Swee EE
Ms Rosalind Boon
Hiang HONG
Ms Rossalind Alessandra
CHEW
Mr Roy Kwee Sai WEE
Ms Rozilawati Bte Rahim
Mr Sai Ram Nilgiri
Ms Sam Ran Boolsambatra
Mr Samar NIAZI
Ms Sandra Gavard
Ms Sandra Sou Mui WONG
Ms Sarah Su Lin SEE
Mdm See Mang YEO
Ms Serene Li San LEOW
Ms Shanshan MO
Ms Sharon Wei Ling TEO
Ms Sharon Yean Lynn LOH
Mr Sherman Kian Hin TEO
Ms Shirley Xue Li CHUA
Ms Shoba G Nair
Mr Shoen Yih YUM
Mdm Siew Khim NG
Mr Siew Ping QUAH
Ms Siew Yin LIM
Mr Sin Yong PHUA
Mr Siraj Omar
Ms Sok Chun CHUW
Ms Soo Eng LIM
Mr Soo Huat HOO
Ms Sook Han LEE
Ms Sook Poh NG
Ms Sook Yee LIEW
Mr Soon Hee KOH
Mr Soon Hock CHIEW
Mrs Sophia Sak BAKER
Mr Steven Yen-Peng HO
Mr Subhas s/o V Nathan

Ms Su-Yin LIM
Ms Swee Choo YEO
Ms Swee Kheng CHUA
Mdm Sweo Qeo LEE
Mr Syn Min LIEW
Ms Sze Hui GOH
Mr Tat Wee LEE
Mr Teck Boon WONG
Mr Teck Chye LIM
Mr Tech En LOH
Mr Teow Ban TEO
Mr Terence TAN
Mr Timothy John
Ms Tiu Suan WONG
Mr Yong Sheng GOH
Mr Tony LEE
Ms Trina Liang Zhen NEO
Mr Tse Chiang HOWE
Mr Tuck Chuen SOH
Mr Tuck Kong SOH
Mr Tze Lui LOO
Mrs Ursula T QUAH
Ms V Prema
Ms Vaishali Rastogi
Ms Valerie Seok Yee CHAN
Mr Vikram Mansukhani
Mr Vincent Kim Huat GOH
Mr Vincent Puay Chong LIM
Mr Vincent Wei Teck LOO
Ms Vivien TANG
Ms Vivienne Kailin LOW
Mr Wah Nam TAN
Ms Wai Fong TENG
Mr Wai Hon YIP
Ms Wai Pik LEUNG
Ms Wan Cheng GOH
Mr Wan Cheong LEE
Ms Wan Loy YEONG
Mr Wan Ming LEE
Mr Wee Hiong EIO
Mr Wee Tong TAN
Ms Wei Ling KOH
Ms Wei Yen YIP
Ms Wen Pin CHEE
Ms Wendy HENG

Mr Weng Foo LEE
Ms Wilna Teck Suan TAN
Miss Winnie Hwee Li CHIN
Ms Winnie Yin Liu TOH
Mr Winson Wee San GOH
Mr Wouter Kokelenberg
Mr Wouter Van Rij
Mr Xiangling LIN
Ms Xiaoshu PAN
Mis Xin Yi PEH
Mr Yee Kwang SECK
Mr Yek Seng YEO
Mr Yew Kuen LOKE
Mr Yew Tet PANG
Mr Yew Yong TOO
Ms Ying Yik Chiu
Ms Yu Yee LAM
Ms Yuan Wah NEO
Ms Yvonne Mei Chern HO
Ms Yvonne Su Lin LOW
Ms Zerlina LIM
Mr Zheng Yu LEOW
Mr Zhenlong LI
Mr Zhenming TONG
Mr Zhu Kuang LEE
Mr Zulkarnain Bin Hassan
ARMF II (Tampines) Pte Ltd
Asiamalls Management
(South East Asia) Pte Ltd
Beautiful People
Equipe Services &
Technology Pte Ltd
Johnson & Johnson Medical
Asia Pacific
National Volunteer and
Philanthropy Centre
SMU BMA 2010
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Donations from $500$999
Mr Andreas Harjanto
Lunardhi
Mr Anwar Kazim
Ms Audrey SEAH
Mrs Bharathi Nambiar
Mr Bonaventure Soon
Tow LEK
Ms Carolyn Yuen Shan
CHAN
Ms Cher Luang KWOK
Mr Chong SIM
Mr David THIAN
Mr Denis Rozier Antonin
Jacques Cazala
Mr Desmond Yen Hau TAN
Mr Edwin Chu Meng LEOW
Mr Edwin Wee Tack KUNG
Ms Ester Hsiu Ling
CHUOONG
Mr Glenn Cheng Ze GOH
Ms Grace LU
Mr Hean Ho LOH
Mr Jesper Chin Yiong LIM
Mdm Joanne Ting Fong LEE
Mr Kang Seng SEOW
Mr Kee Hock TAN
Mr Kok Hua SIA
Ms Liza Sau Fun BOEY
Mr Manjit Singh Randhawa
Mdm Mee Lan SOON
Ms Melissa LEE
Mr Ming Teck KONG
Ms Mui Leng GOH
Mr Nicholas Jeyaraj
s/o Narayanan
Mr Nicol ZHOU
Mr Paul Wei Hsing THAM
Mr Ravinder Grover
Mr S Vergis Abraham
Dr Sarani Omar
Mr Simon REE

Ms Soke Yee AW
Mr Stanley FONG
Mr Suan Kiat QUEK
Mr Teck Ting LEE
Mr Tee How TAN
Ms Ute Braasch
Mr Vahid Khamsi
Ms Wai Yin LOKE
Mr Wee Beng TAN
Ms Yee Ling LIM
Mr Yeow Leong LOH
Mr Yew Heng LIM
Ms Yoek Ling YONG
The Body Shop International
(Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd
C C Yang & Co
Cathay Building 2002 Pte Ltd
Green Revolution Pte Ltd
JAG Engineering (S) Pte Ltd
Pro-Matrix Pte Ltd

Donations from $1,000$4,999
Mr Andrew Ann Kheng YEO
Mr Bilahari Kim Hee
Kousikan
Mr Carl Harris
Mr Chee Kong GOH
Ms Choi Kuen LAI
Mrs Choo Kim EUN
Ms Choon Khim CHUA
Mr Choon Yuen HUI
Ms Dora Siew Eng YEO
Ms Eng Hwa TAN
Ms Felicity CHAN
Mr Gek Gnee TAN
Mr James Kiong Yew IONG
Mr Joseph Kok Hong KOH
Ms Juliet Ley Chin LEE
Mr Khanna Dinesh
Ms Kim Cheng TEO
Mr Kwong Wai MOK

Mr Larry Charles Medina
Ms Latha Ratnam Ganesh
Mr Lian Heng CHUA
Ms Li-Wen CHUA
Mr Michael KOH
Mr Omar Bin Hussain
Bagarib
Mr Sandrasegara Manoj
Pillay
Mr Seng Joon PANG
Mr Seow Phong TEO
Ms Sharon Su Mei CHAN
Mr Shing Kwok CHOI
Ms Soh Chin Cho
Mdm Soh Har GAN
Mr Tiam Yoon YONG
Ms Veronica PANG
Mr Vishrut Jain
Mr Wei San SOONG
Ms Ying Ying LAU
Ms Yixi SU
BuUuk Pte Ltd
Carpe Diem Holdings Pte Ltd
Cartus Corporation Pte Ltd
Class of Nursery 8 at Tanglin
Trust School
Consistel Pte Ltd
D. S. Brown Singapore
Pte Ltd
Drew & Napier LLC
The Hongkong & Shanghai
Banking Corporation Ltd
Merrill Lynch International
Bank Limited (Merchant
Bank)
Orchid Jayceettes of
Singapore
Popular Book Company
Pte Ltd
Project Cactus
Q Lifestyle (S) Pte Ltd
RC Hotels (Pte) Ltd
Rotary Club of Queenstown,
Singapore
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SPRING Singapore
The Subordinate Courts of
Singapore
Superoil Trading Pte Ltd
Tanglin Trust School Ltd
To Infinity and Beyond
Traders Hotel Singapore

Donations from $5,000$9,999
Ms Bonnie LE
Ms Pearlyn Lo Lan CHONG
Mr Yew Lin GOH
Baurand Pte Ltd
Citibank Singapore Limited
The Community Foundation
of Singapore

Energy Market Authority
Essential Werkz Pte Ltd
Gan Teck Kar Investments
Pte Ltd
LG Electronics Singapore
Pte Ltd
LinkUPCRM Private Limited
L’oreal Singapore Pte Ltd
M1 Limited
MediaCorp Pte Ltd
Mellford Pte Ltd
Pacific World Singapore
Pte Ltd
Pivotal Career Solutions
S.W.I.F.T. Terminal Services
Pte Ltd
Searights Maritime Services
Pte Ltd
Singapore Press Holdings Ltd
Tekelec Singapore Pte Ltd

Donations from $10,000$49,999
Mr Check Kian LOW
Mr Francis Boon Meng LEE
Mr Wah Kheong LEONG
Barclays Bank PLC
Credit Suisse AG
Ericsson Telecommunications
Pte Ltd
Lee Foundation Singapore
Tesa Tape Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
UNIFEM Singapore

Donations from $50,000 - $99,999
BGC Partners (Singapore) Limited

Donations from $100,000 and above
Milk Fund
President’s Challenge
PSA Corporation Limited
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11. Saying Thanks
People and Coordinating Bodies
Our volunteers, who give so much of themselves for the young people we serve.
Dr Sheryn Mah and Mrs Joy Balakishnan
Patrons
Dr S Vasoo
Honorary Advisor to the Organisation
Central Singapore Community Development Council
The National Council of Social Service for their confidence in the organization, their longstanding friendship and Support
The National Youth Council for their constant encouragement and recognition of our work.

Government & Grassroots Organization
Ang Mo Kio Community Centre
Bukit Ho Swee Court Residents Committee
Bukit Ho Swee Residents Committee
Covent Indus Residents Committee
Henderson Heights Residents committee
Henderson Community Club
Kebun Baru Residents’ Committee
Kim Seng Community Centre Management Committee
Kim Seng Delta Avenue Residents’ Committee
Kreta Ayer Kim Seng Citizens Consultative Committee
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Leng Kee Community Centre
Lengkok Bahru Residents Committee
Tanglin Cairnhill Citizens Consultative Committee

Partners/ Community Organization
Agape Little Uni (Kallang Pte Ltd)
Care Corner Child Development Centres
Ci You Childcare Centre
Creative Star Kids Campus
D’Joy Children’s Centre Learning
Dardis Child Development Centre
Daystar Child Development Centre
Eileen's Childcare Centre
Enfant Educare
Happy Town Child Care Centre
Intellect Child Care and Development Centre
Iyad Nurture Care
Jamiyah Childcare Centre
Jingles Childcare Centre
Jude Childcare & Child Development Centre
Learning Seeds Child Development Centre
Little Dolphin Playskool
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Moral Child Development Centre
My First Skool
Our Lady Star of the Sea Child Care Centre
ParkWest Creche
PCF Kindergarten
PCF Sparkletots
PCS Child Care
Pertapis Eunos Childcare Centre
Rainbow Childcare & Development Centre
Salvation Army Child Care Centre (Tampines)
Sasco Child Care Centre
Singapore Children’s Society Student Care Centre
Smiling Kids Pte Ltd
Tai Pei Childcare
YWCA-Marine Drive Child Development Centre
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Organizations for their friendship and support
ACR Capital Holdings Pte Ltd & SHC Insurance Pte Ltd
For making our families feel safe
Allen & Gledhill LLP
For your pro-bono guidance on drafting the Investment Policy and Guidelines
B Braun Singapore Pte Ltd
For being wonderful supporters of our children through the Track a Life Programme
Baker & McKenzie.Wong & Leow
For generously touching the lives of our children with your resources and friendship
Bank of America Merrill Lynch
For serving our children with all your heart. Your reading programme & drama activities have
reassured our children that they can learn
Barclays Capital Services Limited
For fundraising and the friendship you have extended to our children & youths
BGC Partners (Singapore) Limited and BGC Radix Energy L.P., Singapore Branch
For your generous donation which touches and reassures our families that they live among
compassionate and caring people
Blackbox Research Pte Ltd
For assisting us with the Youth Resilience Survey and providing us with invaluable advice and
guidance
The Bodyshop International (Asia Pacific) Pte Limited
For your continued generosity and kindness to our children
The Boston Consulting Group
For your consistent support towards our children’s educational expenses through the
Educational Assistance Fund
Boys Brigade Sharity Gift Box
For your act of giving that has benefitted many families we serve
Brosky Bikes
For getting our bicycles riding well, it is definitely something that means a lot to our children
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Camp Challenge Pte Ltd
For sharing your space with our children and youth and reassuring them that they live in a
supportive community
CapitaLand Hope Foundation
For your continued generosity and kindness which have reassured the children, youths and
families we serve that they live in a supportive community
Carpe Diem Holdings Pte Ltd
For your committed support towards our children from the Healthy Start Child Development
Centre through the Track a Life Programme
China Aviation Oil (Singapore) Corporation Ltd
For celebrating the achievements of our children from the Healthy Start Child Development
Centre by generously sponsoring their year-end graduation
Cirque du Soleil Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
For actively working with our youths and strengthening the community spirit
Faculty of Dentistry - NUS
For brightening the smiles of our children
Far East Organisation
For regularly channelling resources and their continued support
Food From The Heart
For being a friend of Beyond and filling our families with your food, joy and hope
Franciscan Missionaries of Mary
For your active interest in our work, the friendship extended to children and families we serve
The Government of Singapore Investment Corporation (GIC) Recreation Club
For bringing in the Festive Cheer to our families and reassuring them that they live among
compassionate and caring people
Global Yellow Pages Limited
For generously sharing your web-hosting expertise and your wholehearted support for our
work
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
For creating a conducive study environment for our children through your HSBC CR Challenge
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J.P. Morgan
For your long-time friendship and support for the children and youths we serve
Kaplan Singapore
For the valuable gift of education
Khoo Foundation
For the continual support and interest in our work and directing funds towards our cause.
Lee Foundation
For the generous support that has strengthened our ability to serve
The Little Arts Academy
For offering programmes to our children and youths in the areas of theatre, music, visual arts
and dance and continuing to generously touch their lives with your resources and friendship.
Lotus Light Charity Society (Singapore)
For reassuring our young people and families that they live in a supportive community through
the generous donation of rice
Mainly I Love Kids Fund (MILK)
For the love and care you have taken to nurture our ability to serve children, youth and their
families
M1 Limited
For your long-time friendship and thoughtful giving that has brought much sunshine to those
we serve
National Library Board
For opening the door to knowledge for our Healthy Start Child Development Centre.
PJ Clinic Bukit Ho Swee
For medical services at reduced rate for our beneficiaries & staff
Potsdam University of Applied Science
For your support & partnership
PSA Corporation Limited
For your long-time friendship and support for the children and youth we serve
Publicis Singapore Pte Ltd
For sharing your creativity with us
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Singapore Polytechnic Optometry Centre
For impressing on our young children the importance of caring for their eyesight
SPRING Singapore
For organizing educational field trips for youths and children throughout the year, sponsoring
and co-organizing our yearly graduation ceremony.
Tesa Tape Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
For your committed support for our children through the Track a Life Programme
Traders Hotel, Singapore
For supporting and sponsoring our youths to further their education and career pathway in the
Hospitality industry

For supporting the 2011 Youth United Day:
BuUuk Pte Ltd, Defence Science & Technology Agency, Nestle Singapore (Pte) Ltd, Zouk
Management Pte Ltd,
For sponsorship in-kind & organizing fun filled events for our children:
Agilent Technologies Singapore Pte Ltd, AXA Rosenberg Investment Management Asia Pacific
Ltd, Bank Julius Baer & Co. Ltd, Cartus Corporation Pte Ltd, Corrupt Practices Investigation
Bureau, CPA Australia, Credit Suisse AG, Criminal Investigation Department, Defence Science
& Technology Agency, Dignity Kitchen, Energy Market Authority, Fox Fashion Apparels (S) Pte
Ltd, Friends In Charity, The Fullerton Hotel Singapore, IBC Asia (S) Pte Ltd, Johnson &
Johnson Medical Asia Pacific, Krafts Foods (Singapore) Pte Ltd, National Museum of Singapore,
Nestle Singapore (Pte) Ltd, NTU Alumni Club, Orchid Jayceettes of Singapore, People’s
Association, Pokka Corporation(S) Pte Ltd, Popular Book Co (Pte) Ltd, SAFRA Jurong,
SCAPE*, Snap! Entertainment Pte Ltd, S.W.I.F.T. Terminal Services Pte Ltd, Standard Chartered
Bank Singapore, STMicroelectronics Asia Pacific (Pte) Ltd, Singapore General
Hospital, Singapore Tourism Board, The Subordinate Courts of Singapore, Visa Worldwide Pte
Ltd

Individuals for extending friendship & cooperation
Mr Aleksander Duric
For serving as our ambassador and inspiring our children and youth to do their best
The Khoo Family, especially Jacqueline
For continual support and genuine concern for the well-being of the people we serve

63

Beyond Social Services Annual Report 2011
•••

Ms Melissa Kwee and the Big Sisters from the Beautiful People Programme
For mentoring and organizing programme for our youths
Ms Angeline Poon & Mr Bernard Tan
For consistent support that has strengthened our ability to serve
Mr Sukhjeet Sekhon & Mrs Berna Sekhon
For steadfast support and contributions towards our children’s educational needs
All our volunteers
For sharing your time and yourselves to serve the people we work with
The spouses, partners, children, family & friends of our staff
For respecting and supporting their odd working hours and particular perspectives of life

Finally our most grateful thanks to all others who have contributed time, energy, resources or
funds but are not mentioned here. Your goodwill has energized and assured those we serve that
they are a part of the community we live in.

School Partnerships
ACS Independent, ACS International, Anderson Secondary School, Anderson Junior College,
Anglo Chinese Junior College, Bedok South Secondary School, Blangah Rise Primary School,
Bukit Merah Secondary School, Catholic Junior College, Crescent Girls School, Cedar Girls
Secondary School, CHIJ St Joseph’s Convent, CHIJ St Theresa’s Convent, CHIJ St. Nicholas
Girls’ School, Gan Eng Seng Primary School, Gan Eng Seng Secondary School, Henderson
Secondary School, Hwa Chong Institution, Kowabunga! Education Centre, Marymount
Convent School, Methodist Girls’ School (Secondary), Nanyang Girls High, National Junior
College, Nanyang Polytechnic, National Institute of Education, National University of
Singapore, Nanyang Technological University, New Town Primary School, Ngee Ann
Polytechnic, Outram Secondary School, Outward Bound School, Queenstown Primary School,
Queenstown Secondary School, Queensway Secondary School, Radin Mas Primary School,
Raffles Girls’ School, Raffles Institution, Raffles Institution (Junior College), Republic
Polytechnic, St Joseph’s Institution, River Valley High, Singapore American School,
Singapore Chinese Girls School, Singapore Management University, Singapore Institute of
Management, Singapore Polytechnic, Tanglin Trust School, United World College of SEA,
Victoria Junior College, Zhangde Primary School.
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
STATEMENT BY BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
________________________________________________________________________________

We, being two of the undersigned Board of Management of Beyond Social Services do hereby state
that, in the opinion of the Board of Management, the statement of financial position, statement of
financial activities, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows are properly drawn
up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Society as at 31 December 2011 and
the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Society for the financial year ended on that date.

On behalf of the Board of Management

Stanley Tan
President

Chua Kee Lock
Honorary Treasurer

Singapore
4 May 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT OF BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES (the Society),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the statement of financial
activities, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
The Board of Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Society’s Board of Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act (Chapter 311), Charities Act (Chapter 37),
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and Recommended Accounting Practice 6 and for devising and
maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that
they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair statement of financial activities and
statement of financial position and to maintain accountability of assets.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Society’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by Board of Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Societies
Act (Chapter 311), Charities Act (Chapter 37), Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and Recommended
Accounting Practice 6, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Beyond Social Services as at 31
December 2011, and the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Society for the financial year ended on
that date;
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion,
(a)

the accounting and other records required by the above regulations to be kept by the Society have been
properly kept in accordance with those regulations;

(b)

the use of donation money received is in accordance with the Society’s objectives; and

(c)

there were no fund raising event during the financial year.

Helmi Talib & Co
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants
Singapore
4 May 2012
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2011
__________________________________________________________________________________
Notes

2011
$

2010
$

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Plant and equipment

5

268,430

333,408

Current Assets
Receivables and prepayments

6

108,479

416,498

Cash and cash equivalents

7

4,551,708
4,660,187

5,226,908
5,643,406

4,928,617

5,976,814

3,655,912

5,048,955

352,368

353,474

TOTAL ASSETS
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
FUNDS
Unrestricted Funds
General Fund
Designated Funds
TOTAL FUNDS

8

4,008,280

5,402,429

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred Capital Grants

9

24,595

41,112

Current Liabilities
Payables

10

895,742

533,273

4,928,617

5,976,814

TOTAL FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
2011
INCOMING
RESOURCES

Notes

General
Fund

Beautiful
People
Fund
$

$
Incoming resources from
generated funds
Voluntary income
Tax deductible donations
Non tax deductible donations
Miscellaneous income
Membership fees
Funds generating activities
Tax deductible donations
Streetwise Run
Team Beyond
Non tax deductible donations
Streetwise Run
Team Beyond
Interest income
Interest income

Beyond
Champions
Fund
$

Unrestricted Funds
Designated Funds
Educational
Employee
Family
Assistance
Welfare
Assistance
Fund
Fund
Fund
$
$
$

Cirque Du
Monde
Fund
$

Total
Healthy Start
Emergency
Fund
$

School
Money
Pocket Fund
$

Total
Designated
Funds
$

$

1,542,939
225,760
30,510
9,070
1,808,279

41,041
9,689
50,730

-

-

40,311
40,311

-

9,850
9,710
19,560

-

-

91,202
19,399
110,601

1,634,141
245,159
30,510
9,070
1,918,880

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

17,104

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

17,104

17,104

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

17,104

1,581,544
411,453

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

190,918
-

190,918
-

1,772,462
411,453

1,992,997

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

190,918

190,918

2,183,915

3,818,380

50,730

-

-

40,311

-

19,560

-

190,918

301,519

4,119,899

Incoming resources from charitable activities
Government subvention
Programme income

TOTAL INCOMING RESOURCES

11
11

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
2011
RESOURCES
EXPENDED

Notes

General
Fund

Beautiful
People
Fund
$

$
Resources expended for fund generating
Activities
Fund raising activities
Streetwise Run
Team Beyond

Resources expended for charitable activities
Amortisation of deferred capital grants
Charitable expenses
Depreciation
Facilities costs
Other operating expenses
Programme costs
Staff costs

3.17(b)
3.17(b)

9

Resources expended for governance
Depreciation
Facilities costs
Other operating expenses
Programme costs
Staff costs

TOTAL RESOURCES EXPENDED
NET INCOMING
RESOURCES/(EXPENDED)
BEFORE TRANSFERS
Less: Transfer to deferred capital grants
NET INCOMING RESOURCES/
(EXPENDED) FOR THE YEAR

9

Beyond
Champions
Fund
$

Unrestricted Funds
Designated Funds
Educational
Employee
Family
Assistance
Welfare
Assistance
Fund
Fund
Fund
$
$
$

Cirque Du
Monde
Fund
$

Total
Healthy Start
Emergency
Fund
$

School
Money
Pocket Fund
$

Total
Designated
Funds
$

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

16,517
(140,062)
(378,206)
(34,624)
(186,277)
(4,173,440)
(4,896,092)

(11,653)
(11,653)

(4,849)
(4,849)

-

(55,651)
(55,651)

-

(39,142)
(39,142)

(21,835)
(21,835)

(169,495)
(169,495)

(302,625)
(302,625)

16,517
(302,625)
(140,062)
(378,206)
(34,624)
(186,277)
(4,173,440)
(5,198,717)

(4,162)
(33,013)
(50,237)
(17,734)
(210,185)
(315,331)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(4,162)
(33,013)
(50,237)
(17,734)
(210,185)
(315,331)

(5,211,423)

(11,653)

(4,849)

-

(55,651)

-

(39,142)

(21,835)

(169,495)

( 302,625)

(5,514,048)

(1,393,043)
-

39,077
-

(4,849)
-

-

(15,340)
-

-

(19,582)
-

(21,835)
-

21,423
-

(1,106)
-

(1,394,149)
-

(1,393,043)

39,077

(4,849)

-

(15,340)

-

(19,582)

(21,835)

21,423

(1,106)

(1,394,149)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
2010
INCOMING RESOURCES

Notes

General
Fund
$

Incoming resources from
generated funds
Voluntary income
Tax deductible donations
Non tax deductible donations
Miscellaneous income
Membership fees
Funds generating activities
Tax deductible donations
Streetwise Run 2010
Team Beyond 2010
Non tax deductible donations
Streetwise Run 2010
Team Beyond 2010
Interest income
Interest income

Beautiful
People
Fund
$

Beyond
Champions
Fund
$

Unrestricted Funds
Designated Funds
Educational
Employee
Family
Assistance
Welfare
Assistance
Fund
Fund
Fund
$
$
$

Cirque Du
Monde
Fund
$

Total
Healthy Start
Emergency
Fund
$

School
Money
Pocket Fund
$

Total
Designated
Funds
$

$

1,579,704
476,348
136,883
9,065
2,202,000

73,219
1,419
74,638

2,494
2,494

5,957
5,957

70,639
70,639

-

5,990
5,990

-

-

152,342
7,376
159,718

1,732,046
483,724
136,883
9,065
2,361,718

291,497
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

291,497
-

34,194
18,266
343,957

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

34,194
18,266
343,957

25,295

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,295

2,571,252

74,638

2,494

5,957

70,639

-

5,990

-

-

159,718

2,730,970

2,432,247
389,424

-

-

-

-

-

5,000
-

-

154,163
-

159,163
-

2,591,410
389,424

2,821,671

-

-

-

-

-

5,000

-

154,163

159,163

2,980,834

5,392,923

74,638

2,494

5,957

70,639

-

10,990

-

154,163

318,881

5,711,804

Incoming resources from charitable activities
Government subvention
Programme income

TOTAL INCOMING RESOURCES

11
11

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
2010
RESOURCES EXPENDED

Notes

General
Fund
$

Resources expended for fund generating
activities
Fund raising activities
Streetwise Run 2010
Team Beyond 2010

Resources expended for charitable activities
Amortisation of deferred capital grants
Charitable expenses
Depreciation
Facilities costs
Other operating expenses
Programme costs
Staff costs

3.17(b)
3.17(b)

9

Resources expended for governance
Depreciation
Facilities costs
Other operating expenses
Programme costs
Staff costs

TOTAL RESOURCES EXPENDED
NET INCOMING
RESOURCES/(EXPENDED)
BEFORE TRANSFERS
Less: Transfer to deferred capital grants
NET INCOMING RESOURCES/
(EXPENDED) FOR THE YEAR

9

Beautiful
People
Fund
$

Beyond
Champions
Fund
$

Unrestricted Funds
Designated Funds
Educational
Employee
Family
Assistance
Welfare
Assistance
Fund
Fund
Fund
$
$
$

Cirque Du
Monde
Fund
$

Total
Healthy Start
Emergency
Fund
$

School
Money
Pocket Fund
$

Total
Designated
Funds
$

$

(53,678)
(3,746)
(57,424)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(53,678)
(3,746)
(57,424)

8,428
(162,922)
(418,357)
(19,216)
(243,128)
(4,161,752)
(4,996,947)

(18,409)
(18,409)

(11,758)
(11,758)

(5,569)
(5,569)

(58,339)
(58,339)

(450)
(450)

(21,355)
(21,355)

(1,406)
(1,406)

(157,660)
(157,660)

(274,946)
(274,946)

8,428
(274,946)
(162,922)
(418,357)
(19,216)
(243,128)
(4,161,752)
(5,271,893)

(2,266)
(39,118)
(58,172)
(10,187)
(126,876)
(236,619)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(2,266)
(39,118)
(58,172)
(10,187)
(126,876)
(236,619)

(5,290,990)

(18,409)

(11,758)

(5,569)

(58,339)

(450)

(21,355)

(1,406)

(157,660)

(274,946)

(5,565,936)

101,933
(49,540)

56,229
-

(9,264)
-

388
-

12,300
-

(450)
-

(10,365)
-

(1,406)
-

(3,497)
-

43,935
-

145,868
(49,540)

52,393

56,229

(9,264)

388

12,300

(450)

(10,365)

(1,406)

(3,497)

43,935

96,328

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
__________________________________________________________________________________

Notes
At 1 January 2010

Total Funds
$
5,306,101

Net resources/(expended) for the year
At 31 December 2010

96,328
8

5,402,429

Net resources/(expended) for the year
At 31 December 2011

(1,394,149)
8

4,008,280

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
__________________________________________________________________________________

Notes

2011
$

2010
$

Cash flows from operating activities
Net resources/(expended) for the financial year

(1,394,149)

96,328

Adjustment for:
Amortisation of deferred capital grants
Depreciation
Impairment loss on receivables
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment
Operating surplus/(loss) before changes in working capital

(16,517)
144,224
5,164
610
(1,260,668)

(8,428)
165,188
4,675
257,763

Decrease in receivables and prepayments
Increase in payables
Cash generated/(used) from operating activities
Deferred capital grants
Net cash generated/(used) from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalent at end of year

7

302,855
362,469
(595,344)
(595,344)

33,851
158,952
450,566
49,540
500,106

(79,856)
(79,856)

(75,288)
(75,288)

(675,200)

424,818

5,226,908
4,551,708

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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4,802,090
5,226,908

BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
__________________________________________________________________________________
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements.
1

THE SOCIETY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The Bukit Ho Swee Community Service Project, the predecessor of the Beyond Social
Services was originally established in August 1969. The Bukit Ho Swee Social Service
Centre was registered as a Society (herein referred to as ‘the Society’) in 7 February 1987. It
is registered as a charity under the Charities Act, Chapter 37 since 19 September 1988.
On 15 October 2001, the Society was known as Beyond Social Services. The registered
address of the Society is Block 26, Jalan Klinik, #01-42 / 52, Singapore 160026.
The principal activities of the Society are to provide counselling and care services for children
and young persons, to assist where possible families in need and to encourage voluntary
social service and responsible citizenship.
The Society is approved as an Institution of a Public Character (IPC) under the provisions of
the Income Tax Act. The Society’s tax exempt status will expire on 30 June 2013.
The financial statements of the Society for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 were
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Management on 4 May
2012.

2

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
The Society is governed by the Board of Management. All Board members are volunteers and
received no monetary remunerations for their contributions.
For the financial year under review, the members of the Board of Management 2011/12 who
were appointed on 19 May 2011 are as follows:
Stanley Tan
Goh Chee Kong
San Shang Hou
Chua Kee Lock
Andy Leck
Janet Lyn
Dr Norman Wong
Quek Suan Kiat
Dr Tan Poh Kiang
Sr Molly Lim

-

President
Vice President
Honorary Secretary
Honorary Treasurer
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Founder Member Representative
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
__________________________________________________________________________________
3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Societies Act, (Chapter 311), Charities Act, (Chapter 37), Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards (FRS) and Recommended Accounting Practice 6 (RAP 6).
The Society has applied RAP 6 for the presentation of the Statement of Financial Activities
which differs from FRS 1 presentation of Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below.
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. All these judgements, estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The financial statements are expressed in Singapore Dollars (SGD or $).
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Society and are consistent with
those used in the previous financial year.

3.2

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except in the current financial year, the Society has adopted all the new and revised standards
and interpretations of FRS (INT FRS) that are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011. The adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any
effect on the financial performance or position of the Society.

3.3

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Society has not early adopted all the new standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards which have been published and are mandatory for the Society's accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 or later period.
The Board of Management expect that the adoption of the new standards and interpretations
will have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
Below are the new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards, that have
been published and are relevant for the Society's accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012 or later periods.
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
__________________________________________________________________________________
3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to FRS 107 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets (Effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011)
The amendments to FRS 107 introduce disclosure requirements for all transferred assets,
existing at the reporting date, irrespective of when the related transfer transaction occurred.
These additional disclosure requirements are to enable users of financial statements to
evaluate the risk exposures relating to transfers transactions of financial assets (for example,
securitisations), including understanding the possible effects of any risks that may remain
with the entity that transferred the assets. The amendments also require additional disclosures
if a disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are undertaken around the end of the
reporting period.

3.4

Functional currency
The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Society operates i.e. functional currency, to be SGD. Donation received and major costs
and major operating expenses are primarily influenced by fluctuations in SGD.

3.5

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment.
The cost of plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the plant and equipment to working condition for its
intended use. Subsequent expenditure relating to plant and equipment that has already been
recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Society and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance expenses are recognised in the
statement of financial activities when incurred.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis to allocate the cost of the assets less residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The annual rates of depreciation are:
Air-conditioner
Computer
Equipment
Furniture & fittings
Leasehold improvement
Motor vehicle

5 years
3 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
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BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
__________________________________________________________________________________
3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5

Plant and Equipment (continued)
The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year
end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the items of plant and equipment.
An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset
is included in the statement of financial activities in the year the plant and equipment is
derecognised.

3.6

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Society’s assets are reviewed at each end of the reporting period
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. All impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of financial activities whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is only revised to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
impairment, if no impairment loss had been recognised. All reversals of impairment are
recognised in the statement of financial activities.

3.7

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Financial assets are recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the Society becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus transaction
costs.
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the
trade date i.e. the date that the Society commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.
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UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
__________________________________________________________________________________
3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7

Financial assets (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
The Society classifies the following financial assets as loans and receivables:
 Cash and cash equivalents
 Receivables

3.8

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and fixed deposits. Cash
carried in the statement of financial position is classified and accounted for as loans and
receivables under FRS 39.

3.9

Impairment of financial assets
The Society assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of financial activities.
When the financial asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial
assets is reduced directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts
charged to the allowance account are written off against the carrying value of the financial
asset.
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets
has incurred, the Society considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is
recognised in the statement of financial activities.

3.10

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset has expired.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of financial
activities.

3.11

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include payables, which are normally settled on 30-90 day terms.
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when, the Society
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities
are initially recognised at fair value of consideration received less attributable transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities when the liabilities are
derecognised and through the amortisation process. The liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
For financial liabilities other than derivatives, gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of financial activities when the liabilities are derecognised and through the amortisation
process.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12

Funds
Fund balances restricted by outside sources are so indicated and are distinguished from
unrestricted funds allocated to specific purposes if any by action of the management.
Externally restricted funds may only be utilised in accordance with the purposes established
by the source of such funds and are in contrast with unrestricted funds over which
management retains full control to use in achieving any of its institutional purposes.

3.13

Provision
Provisions are recognised when the Society has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event where it is probable that it will result in an outflow of economic benefits
to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at each end of the reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre- tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.14

Operating leases
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership
of the lease term, are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are charged to the statement of financial activities on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease.
When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period
in which termination takes place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15

Employee benefits

3.16

3.17

(a)

Defined contribution plan
As required by law, the Society makes contributions to the state pension scheme, the
Central Provident Fund (CPF). CPF contributions are recognised as compensation
expenses in the same period as the employment that gives rise to the contribution.

(b)

Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrued to employees.
Unused annual leave are not allowed to be carried forward to the following calendar
year.

Incoming Resources
(a)

Donations
Donations and income from fund-raising projects are recognised as and when received.

(b)

Grants
Government subventions are recognised as income according to the terms of the
funding agreements, on accrual basis.

(c)

Membership fees
Membership subscriptions are recognised as and when received.

(d)

Rendering of services
Income from providing services is recognised when the services are rendered in
accordance with the agreements.

(e)

Interest income
Income on bank current accounts and fixed deposits placed with banks are recognised
on accrual basis.

Resources Expended
All expenditures are accounted for on accrual basis, aggregated under the respective areas.
Direct costs are attributed to the activity where possible. Where costs cannot be wholly
attributable to an activity, they have been apportioned on a basis consistent with the use of
resources.
(a)

Allocation of support costs
Support costs comprise staff costs relating to general management, human resource and
administration, accounting and finance, partnership and community building functions
and have been allocated to charitable activities and governance based on the headcount
required of the activity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17

Resources Expended (continued)
(b)

Costs of generating funds from fund-raising activities
These costs are directly attributable to the fund-raising activities, separate from those
costs incurred in undertaking charitable activities. These costs are fully met by
contributions in the form of cash sponsorships and grants.

(c)

Charitable activities
Costs of charitable activities comprise all costs incurred in the pursuit of the charitable
objects of the Society. The total costs of charitable expenditure include an
apportionment of overhead and shared costs.

3.18

Government Grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

3.19

Deferred Capital Grants
Donations and government grants for capital expenditure are taken to the respective fund
accounts. On utilisation of these funds for capital expenditure, an equivalent amount is
transferred to Deferred Capital Grants. The Deferred Capital Grants is amortised to the
statement of financial activities over the useful lives of the related assets to offset the
depreciation charge on these assets.

3.20

Related party
A related party is considered to be related to the Society if:
(a) The party, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries;
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under the common control with the Society;
(ii) has an interest in the Society that gives it significant influence over the Society; or
(iii) has joint control over the Society.
(b) The party is an associate;
(c) The party is a jointly-controlled entity;
(d) The party is a member of the key management personnel of the Society or its parent;
(e) The party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d);
(f) The party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or
for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or
(g) The party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Society, or of any entity that is a related party of the Society.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A related party includes the trustees/office bearers and key management of the Society. It also
includes an entity or person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under
common or joint control with these persons. It also includes members of the key management
personnel or close members of the family of any individual referred to herein and others who
have the ability to control, jointly control or significantly influence by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, by any such individual.
The trustees/office bearers, or people connected with them, have not received remuneration or
other benefits, from the Society for which they are responsible, or from institutions connected
with the Society.
There is no claim by the trustees/office bearers for services provided to the Society, either by
reimbursement to the trustees/office bearers or by providing the trustees/office bearers with an
allowance or by direct payment to a third party.
All trustees/office bearers, chairman of sub-committees and staff members of the Society are
required to read and understand the conflict of interest policy in place and make full
disclosure of interests. When a conflict of interest situation arises, the members or staffs shall
abstain from participating in the discussion, decision making and voting on the matter.
Key management compensation

Salaries and other short-term employee benefit

2011
$
696,290

2010
$
688,520

The above amounts are included under staff costs as disclosed in the statement of financial
activities.
2011
The number of key management in remuneration bands
Below $75,000
$75,001 to $100,000
Above $100,000

2010
4
5
1

6
3
1

Key management consists of Executive Director, Deputy Executive Director and direct
reporting senior officers.
Remuneration comprises basic salary, annual wages supplements, annual variable
components and contributions to Central Provident Funds. Fringe benefits are excluded.
There were no transactions with a corporation in which the trustees/office bearers and the
above key management personnel have an interest.
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AirConditioner
$

Computer
$

Equipment
$

Furniture
& fittings
$

Leasehold
improvement
$

Motor
vehicle
$

Total
$

COST
At 1.1.10
Additions
Disposals
At 31.12.10
Additions
Disposals

78,397
1,930
(2,272)
78,055
4,490
(6,495)

43,067
70,772
(2,111)
111,728
71,370
(9,633)

36,299
2,586
(1,962)
36,923
3,100
(1,520)

112,682
(2,398)
110,284
896
(17,582)

644,928
(23,768)
621,160
-

57,000
57,000
-

972,373
75,288
(32,511)
1,015,150
79,856
(35,230)

At 31.12.11

76,050

173,465

38,503

93,598

621,160

57,000

1,059,776

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
At 1.1.10
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31.12.10
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31.12.11

63,725
4,454
(1,718)
66,461
4,808
(6,180)
65,089

43,048
12,040
(2,110)
52,978
25,803
(9,630)
69,151

20,750
5,392
(1,679)
24,463
4,399
(1,516)
27,346

82,476
16,943
(2,396)
97,023
12,974
(17,294)
92,703

277,391
126,359
(19,933)
383,817
96,240
480,057

57,000
57,000
57,000

544,390
165,188
(27,836)
681,742
144,224
(34,620)
791,346

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31.12.11

10,961

104,314

11,157

895

141,103

-

268,430

At 31.12.10

11,594

58,750

12,460

13,261

237,343

-

333,408
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RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
2011
$
46,900
4,374
24,896
9,892
22,417
-

2010
$
47,330
8,227
263,878
68,051
27,312
1,700

108,479

416,498

Total receivables (excluding prepayments)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7)

86,062
4,551,708

389,186
5,226,908

Total loans and receivables

4,637,770

5,616,094

Deposits
Fixed deposits interest receivables
Government funding receivables
Other receivables
Prepayments
Training costs recoverable

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, other receivables amounting to $5,164
(2010: NIL) were written-off as they were deemed no longer collectible.
Receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Society has no (2010: NIL) receivables that are past due at the end of the reporting period
but not impaired.
Receivables that are impaired
The Society has no (2010: NIL) receivables that are impaired.
Receivables and prepayments are denominated in Singapore Dollars.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand
Cash at banks
Fixed deposits

2011
$
2,500
616,650
3,932,558

2010
$
2,500
340,924
4,883,484

4,551,708

5,226,908

Cash at banks are held in interest bearing current accounts.
Cash at banks earn interest at floating rate based on daily bank deposit rates.
Interest on fixed deposits is earned at rates of between 0.05% to 0.85% (2010: 0.05% to
0.95%) per annum. Interest rates reprice within one year.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of the
balances as shown above.
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Singapore Dollars.

This portion was intentionally left blank
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FUNDS ACCOUNTS BALANCES

Unrestricted Funds
General
Fund

Designated Funds

Total

Balance at 1 January 2010
Net incoming/(expended) resources

$
4,996,562
52,393

Beautiful
People
Fund
$
68,920
56,229

Balance at 31 December 2010
Net incoming/(expended) resources

5,048,955
(1,393,043)

125,149
39,077

11,086
(4,849)

292
-

67,414
(15,340)

92,027
-

32,877
(19,582)

21,835
(21,835)

2,794
21,423

353,474
(1,106)

5,402,429
(1,394,149)

3,655,912

164,226

6,237

292

52,074

92,027

13,295

-

24,217

352,368

4,008,280

Balance at 31 December 2011

Beyond
Champions
Fund
$
20,350
(9,264)

Cirque Du
Monde
Fund
$
(96)
388

Educational
Assistance
Fund
$
55,114
12,300

Employee
Welfare
Fund
$
92,477
(450)

Family
Assistance
Fund
$
43,242
(10,365)

Healthy Start
Emergency
Fund
$
23,241
(1,406)

School
Pocket
Money Fund
$
6,291
(3,497)

Total
Designated
Funds
$
309,539
43,935

$
5,306,101
96,328
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FUNDS ACCOUNTS BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(a)

Beautiful People Fund
Beautiful People is a volunteer project whose professional and skilled persons share
their skills and spend time with teen girls, through the various programmes and
activities, associated with various community organisations including family service
centres, welfare homes and youth outreach organisations in Singapore.
Beautiful People partners with Beyond Social Services for programmes and activities
which are mutually beneficial. Funds raised by the Beautiful People are used to
defray the costs of its programmes and activities and administrative services provided
by Society are pro bono.

(b)

Cirque Du Monde Fund
Cirque De Monde Fund was set up for Cirque Du Monde project and related activitybased learning programmes for the youth.

(c)

Educational Assistance Fund
Established to give monetary support to encourage children and youths to stay in
school or pick up a skill after alternative sources of support such as
bursaries/scholarships have been explored. Income for the fund will come from
individual or corporate monetary gift and donations.

(d)

Family Assistance Fund
Donations received from the public designated for the purpose of helping the needy
families.

(e)

Healthy Start Emergency Fund
This Fund is provided by the government to help families with children in the Healthy
Start Programme co-pay their childcare fees. The Healthy Start Programme which is a
pilot project ensures that these children continue to receive early childhood
development programmes till they begin formal education. This fund was closed on
30 September 2011.

(f)

School Pocket Money Fund
The School Pocket Money Fund is a charity fund-raising project organised by The
Straits Times to heighten public awareness of the plight of children from low-income
families who were attending school without proper breakfast or pocket money to
sustain their day in school. The fund is disbursed through voluntary welfare
organizations and Family Service Centres (FSC) through National Council for Social
Sevices (NCSS).
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FUNDS ACCOUNTS BALANCES (CONTINUED)
(g)

Employee Welfare Fund
Established by a donor to provide immediate short-term financial assistance to
Beyond’s employee who is a breadwinner and caregiver, and to help his/her family to
tide over a crisis which has arisen from a sudden serious illness or death of the
employee. The aid can also be extended if financial hardship occurs because a child
or spouse of an employee suffers from a serious illness and requires costly medical
care.

(h)

Beyond Champions Fund
This Fund was set up by sports enthusiasts who believe sports play a positive
influence in developing the youths and children’s sports potential by creating
opportunities for them in the world of sports.

9

DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS
Unrestricted
General
Fund
$
COST
At 1.1.10
Transfer from funds
At 31.12.10
Transfer from funds
At 31.12.11

49,540
49,540
49,540

ACCUMULATED
AMORTISATION
At 1.1.10
Charge for the financial year
At 31.12.10
Charge for the financial year
At 31.12.11

8,428
8,428
16,517
24,945

NET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31.12.11
At 31.12.10

24,595
41,112

Deferred capital grants relate to government grants received for the acquisition of computer
equipment for administrative use of the Society. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attached to these grants.
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PAYABLES

Accrued employee benefits expense
Accrued operating expenses
Government funding – received in advance

Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

2011
$
313,637
71,791
510,314

2010
$
256,211
127,126
149,936

895,742

533,273

895,742

533,273

Payables are denominated in Singapore Dollars.

This portion was intentionally left blank
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INCOMING RESOURCES FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES
2011
Designated
Funds

General
Fund

Family
Assistance
Fund
$
Government subvention
Ministry of Community Development, Youth & Sports
Ministry of Health
National Council of Social Service
National Youth Council
Singapore Prison Service
Singapore Totalisator Board Social Service Fund
Amount carried forward to next page

$

School
Pocket
Money
Fund
$

Total

2010
Designated
Funds

General
Fund

Family
Assistance
Fund
$

$

$

School
Pocket
Money
Fund
$

Total

$

752,148
15,211
164,349
(2,074)
651,910

-

190,918
-

752,148
15,211
355,267
(2,074)
651,910

1,316,959
55,173
220,943
96,613
93,500
649,059

5,000
-

154,163
-

1,321,959
55,173
375,106
96,613
93,500
649,059

1,581,544

-

190,918

1,772,462

2,432,247

5,000

154,163

2,591,410
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INCOMING RESOURCES FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
2011
Designated
Funds

General
Fund

Family
Assistance
Fund
$
Amount brought forward from
previous page
Programme income
Healthy Start Childcare Centre Fees
Family co-payments
Ministry of Community Development,Youth & Sports
Others

Total

$

Total

School
Pocket
Money
Fund
$

2010
Designated
Funds

General
Fund

Family
Assistance
Fund
$

$

$

Total

School
Pocket
Money
Fund
$

$

1,581,544

-

190,918

1,772,462

2,432,247

5,000

154,163

2,591,410

18,796
378,613
397,409
14,044

-

-

18,796
378,613
397,409
14,044

18,650
353,652
372,302
17,122

-

-

18,650
353,652
372,302
17,122

411,453

-

-

411,453

389,424

-

-

389,424

1,992,997

-

190,918

2,183,915

2,821,671

5,000

154,163

2,980,834
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SPONSORSHIPS-IN-KIND
The following items of sponsorships-in-kind received from the corporate donors are not
included in the statement of financial activities of the Society for financial year ended 31
December 2011. These sponsorships-in-kind are fully utilised for Youth Day Celebration.

No.

Item Description

Amount
Estimated
by Donors

Name of Corporate Donor

$
1

Venue, food and beverage for
VIP reception

Zouk Management Pte. Ltd.

2

Milo for Street Soccer
Tournament (Pre-event)

Nestle (S) Pte. Ltd.

600

3

Rental of Boats for Dragon
Boat (Pre-event)

Defence Science and Technology
Agency

510

4

Trophies, medals and T-shirts
(Pre-event)

Defence Science and Technology
Agency

701

32,241

34,052
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SPONSORSHIPS-IN-KIND (CONTINUED)
The following items of sponsorships-in-kind received from the corporate donors are not
included in the statement of financial activities of the Society for financial year ended 31
December 2010. These sponsorships-in-kind are fully utilised for Streetwise Run 2010 Fund
raising activities.

No.

Item Description

Amount
Estimated
by Donors

Name of Corporate Donor

$
1

Bottled mineral water

NTUC Fairprice Foundation Ltd

7,611

2

Barricades

T.K.H. Pte Ltd

1,400

3

Garbage Bags

Peter's Polyethylene Industries Pte
Ltd

4

Letter heads and VIP Cards

Lepress Production Services

5

Race & Family Day prizes

Courts (Singapore) Pte Ltd

2,836

6

Race prizes

Eng Wah Global Pte Ltd

4,000

7

Runner refreshment - Milo
Truck

Nestle Singapore (Pte) Ltd

3,700

8

Runner and baggage tags

Laser Printing Industries Pte Ltd

4,100

9

Snacks, lunch and dinner
packs for officials and
volunteers

Park Hotel Group

10

Lunch for Beneficiaries

Khoo Teck Puat Foundation

11

Transportation - Lorry

Poh Tiong Choon Logistics Limited

12

Venue, marketing material,
food and beverage for VIP
reception

Zouk Management Pte Ltd

70
520

11,200

3,200
300
49,302

Total

88,239

95

BEYOND SOCIAL SERVICES
UEN No: S87SS0025J
(Registered under the Societies Act, Chapter 311 and Charities Act, Chapter 37, Singapore)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2011
_________________________________________________________________________________
13

TAX EXEMPT RECEIPTS
During the financial year, the Society issued tax-exempt receipts for donations collected from
voluntary income and income from fund-raising activities amounting to $1,634,141 (2010:
$2,023,543).

14

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Society has entered into operating leases on the premises and photocopier machines.
These leases have an average tenure of 3 to 5 years with no contingent rent provision included
in the contracts. The lease for premises include a renewal clause for extending the lease
period for a further 3 years at a rental rate to be agreed between the parties.
Rental expenses for premises and photocopier machines for the Society recognised in the
statement of financial activities amounting to $190,584 and $17,719 (2010: $213,794 and
$19,233) for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 respectively.
(a)

Future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases for
premises located at No. 10 Admiralty Road East as of 31 December are as follows:

Within one year
Within two to five years

(b)

2010
$
137,568
259,086

259,086

396,654

Future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases for
photocopier machines as of 31 December are as follows:

Within one year
Within two to five years

15

2011
$
137,568
121,518

2011
$
16,560
27,600

2010
$
16,560
44,160

44,160

60,720

INCOME TAX
The Society is a registered Charity under the Charities Act, Chapter 37 and is exempted from
income tax.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The main risks arising from the Society’s financial instruments are credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Society has no foreign currency risk. The
Board of Management policies for managing these risks are summarised below.
There has been no change to the Society’s exposure to these financial risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.
Credit risk
Credit risk is limited to risk of a loss that may arise on outstanding financial
instruments should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Society’s exposure
to credit risk arises primarily from receivables. For other financial assets that are cash
and cash equivalents, the Society minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with
high credit rating counterparties.
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of receivables and cash and cash equivalents represents the
Society’s maximum exposure to credit risk. No other financial asset carries a
significant exposure to credit risk.
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are receivables from government
subvention, fundraising activities and deposits. Cash and cash equivalents that are
neither past due nor impaired are placed with or entered into with reputable financial
institutions with high credit ratings and no history of default.
Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
The Society has no (2010: NIL) financial assets that are either past due or impaired.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the Society is unable to meet its short term
obligations and this arises due to shortage of funds.
Liquidity risk for the Society is minimal as the Society is able to meet its funding
requirements through its operations.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Society has financial liabilities that are
payables amounting to $895,742 (2010: $533,273) which will mature within 1 year or
less.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk relates to fixed deposits.
The Society’s fixed deposit earns interest rates ranging from 0.05% to 0.85% (2010:
0.05% to 0.95%).
The fixed deposit is exposed to market interest rate risk which the Society has no
policies in place to mitigate the effect.
The Society’s interest rate risk is minimal.
Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk
At the end of the reporting period, if the interest rate risk had been 100 basis points
lower/higher with all other variables held constant, the Society’s incoming/
(expended) resources would have been $39,325 (2010: $48,835) higher/lower arising
mainly as a result of a lower / higher interest income on fixed deposits.

(b)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities reported in the statement of
financial position approximates the carrying amount of those assets and liabilities, as
these are short term in nature.
During the financial year, no amount (2010: NIL) has been recognised in the
statement of financial activities in relation to the change in fair value of financial
assets or financial liabilities estimated using a valuation technique.
The Society has no fair value measurement recognised in the statement of financial
position as at end of the reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT OF RESERVES
The Society regards its unrestricted general fund as its reserves.
The Society’s reserves policy requires it to build an operating reserve of 2-3 years to ensure
that services can continue to function during lean years. Fund raising income usually reduces
during periods when the economy is not doing well but it is also during these periods that
beneficiaries need help the most. The Society will not keep a reserve fund that is more than 3
years of its operating budget. The Society’s overall approach to management of reserves
remains unchanged from 2010.
Net cash reserves of the Society are as follows:

Receivables (excluding prepayments) (Note 6)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7)
Payables (Note 10)

2011
$
86,062
4,551,708
(895,742)

2010
$
389,186
5,226,908
(533,273)

3,742,028

5,082,821

The Society is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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